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2010 highlights
Catcher discoveries June 2010
Catcher and Catcher East discovenes represent one of the
largest exploration successes 1n the North Sea for a decade.
31° API light o1l 1n excellent quality reservoir.
Autumn dnlhing of up to 4 exploration wells.
Kraken appl'als al August/September 2010
9/02b-4 appraisal well found much thicker sands than
& exploratlon expected with excellent reservolr characteristics
SUCCEeSses 8/02b-4z exploration sidetrack targeted new reserves west
of the Kraken fault and encountered 2 o1l bearing sands.
14-15° API o1l and wiscosity of around 110cp.
Development planning and concept selection studies are
under way.
Mariner sale & September 2010
future potential Sale of 20.6667% 1nterest for £87.5m
Retention of 6.0% representing 26mmbo
Financial strength  August 2010

Share placing raised £28.8m.

£116 3m cash injection from placing and Manner sale
wi1ll contribute a significant part of the equity for the
development of Kraken, Catcher and Manner.
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Chairman’s statement

Joha Conlin
Chalrman

The Catcher discoveries
and the equally significant
Kraken appraisal and
exploration wells were
stunning successes not
least because they were
driven by two of the
smaller E&P companies
operating 1 the North Sea

The accounting penod covered by this
Annual Report reflected a quiet operational
peticd for Nautical but studies and
preparatory work dunng that pencd set the
foundation for the remarkable advance 1n
the Company's profile in the market over
the last three months The Catcher
discoveries and the equally sigmficant
Kraken appraisal and exploration wells
were stunning successes not least because
they were dnven by two of the smaller E&P
companies operating in the North Sea

Core discoveries

The Catcher partners plan a drilling
campaign for later this year 1o assess the
further upside potential of Block 28/3 which
contains a number of further prospects,
while 1n parallel, init1ating pre-
development studies Given the high
quality reservoir characteristics in Catchet,
We can expect commerciallsation to move
forward on a very aggressive schedule

The commercial potential of Kraken has
been sigmAcantly enhanced by the recent
dnlhing results not only as regards
increased 1esource volumes but the
confirmation of the low end of the viscosity
range (110cp) recognised 1n well 9/02b-2
However the timing of Field Development
Plan (FDP) subrmssion will be influenced
by our assessment of the Incomplete flow
test on the highly porous, fine grained
Heimndal sands, as well as the need to
unwind the commercial consequences of
the sole nsking operations on Kraken
9/02b-4 and 9/02b-4z 2011 remains our
target for FDP submssion

On Marner, Statoll has continued to deploy
considerable resources towards the
Mariner development and remains on
course to drive the project through
Decision Gate 2 1n early 2011 leading to
development sanction and FDP submission
1n late 2011/early 2012

The successful transition of Nautical's core
discovered assets mnto the development
phase depends not enly on continued

techmical success, but also on the abality of
the Group to fund 1ts share of development
capttal In that latter regard, the addition of
a Light ol Catcher development to our
exasting plans for Manner and Kraken
broadened the strategic options available
to Nautical to balance value creation,
technical risk and capital access/efficiency
as we stnve to maximise shareholder
value from our assets It was in this coniext
that the Company considered that the
opportunity to reduce our position in
Marne: from 26 67% to 6% in exchange for
a cash njection of £87 bm was considered
an excellent prece of business Statoll now
have the controlling position they requured
to pursue the project to production

Funding

In August 2010, capitalising on the positive
market sentitment created by the Catcher
discovery and the imminent Kraken
appraisal, Nautical successfully completed
a placing of 24,280,000 New Crdinary
Shares at a pnice of 125 pence per share to
raise gross proceeds of £30 35m (£28 8m
net of expenses) Following the admission
of the shares on 31 August 2010 there are
87,688,291 shares in1ssue This funding,
combined with the existing cash resources
of £11 7mat 30 June 2010 ensures that
Nautical can fund its planned exploration,
appraisal and pre-development activity
until the end of 2011 On completion of the
Marner transaction with Statoil our cash
position will be significantly strengihened
In addition to the successful pnmary
placing a secondary placing was completed
which resulted 1n 13,000,000 shares being
sold by International Energy Group AG
{IEG), previously the Company's largest
shareholder, bringing their shareholding in
Nautical down to ¢ 5% This brings an end
10 Nautical's close relationship with the
Masefield Group/IEG which underwrote
the concept of Nautical as a heavy otl player
1n 2005 The placing has thus had the twin
benefits of broademing our 1nsttutional
support while sigmificantly improving the
hquidity of the share register
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The dramatic impact of discoveries such as Catcher
on both value and sentiment are the raison-d'etre

of the exploration business, so It 1s encouraging to
note that Nautical also has a select set of exploration
opportunities ready to drill in 2011

New business

The dramattc impact of discoveres such as
Catcher on both value and sentiment are
the raison-d'etre of the exploration
business, so1t 1s encouraging to note that
Nauncal also has a select set of exploration
opportunties ready to drill in 2011 Near
term expleration dnlling 1s planned on the
large Merrow gas prospect in the East Irish
Sea Basin The well 15 expected to spud i
early 2011 This will be followed by an
appratsal well cn the Tudor Rose heavy o1l
discovery in block 14/30a

Looking forward

The coming 12-18 months wtll dictate the
shape of Nautical for the medium term
Market sentiment 1s nghtly very positive as
the spectacular performance of our share
price llustrates and we continue to receive
positive signals that project financing will
be available to us to allow us to participate
i the development of our assets That
position has been significantly enhanced
by the Manner transaction

Nevertheless, the optimum shape of our
development portfolio remains open and
will receive focused consideration at a
strategic level over the coming months as
the scope, timing and costs of our three
core assets crystallise

it has been a fascinating challenge to steer
Nautical through such a transfermational
penod However, for personal reasons I
have advised the Board of my wish to step

down as Chalrman and Board member

To align with the timing of the ongoing
pertfolio and strategy review, I will leave
the Board following the AGM 1n November

The future of the Company looks very
promusing - indeed, Nautical 18 getting very
close to achieving the potential envisaged
by the founders back in 2005

John Conlin
Chairman

Nomn Comtin




Nautical Petroleun ple

Annual report and accounts 2010

04

Chief Executive's review

Steve Jenkinsg
Chuef Executive Officer

The progression of all
areas of our portfolio
combined with greater
financial strength and
outstanding success
at the drill-bit has
made 2009/2010 a
transformational year
for the Company

Increased activity leading to
significant success on many fronts

The period saw a continued focus on the
technical development of our cornerstone
assets, and culmmated in the successful
Catcher and Catcher East discovenes
Beyond year end the successful Kiaken
appraisal and exploration wells were dnlled
and a capital placing was completed
followed by the partial sale of Manner The
progresston of all areas of our portfoho
comhbined with greater financial strength
and outstanding success at the dnll-bit has
made 2009/2010 a transformational year

for the Company

There are now four legs to the Nautical
chair namely Kraken, Catcher, Mariner and
our Exploration and Appraisal portfolio
ensunng a solid platform for organic
growth and a more stable E&P company

Catcher - largest discovery in the
north sea for a decade

Although fewer wells have been drilled 1n
the UKCS than last year signmificant
discovenies have been made Nautical
participated in the largest, Catcher,
Wustranng that the UKCS can stil yield
significant discoveries and 1emains a
worthy place to explore and produce
hydrccarbons

Nautical’s share pnice received a three fold
ncrease from the Catcher and Catcher East
discovenes in June 2010, which had the
added benefit of renewing interest from

the investment community 1n the wider
Nautical portfolio

The 28/9-1 Catcher discovery well
encountered a 73 metres gross o1l column
with 27 metres of net pay Testing
confirmed light o1l of 31* APl and excellent
reservolr characienistucs, with permeability
in excess of 15 Darcies The 28/9-1y side
track successfully appraised the south west
of the Catcher accumulation The Catcher
East 28/9-1z sidetrack also encountered
excellent o1l beanng sandstones very
simlar to the discovery well Pressure data
confimmed that Catcher and Catcher East
are part of a single significant hydrocarbon
accumulation

The success of the Catcher and Caicher
East discoveries has densked the numerous
remaining prospects 1n the block A ng has
been secured and dnlhing 1s expected to
commence 1n mid-October 2010 with a
campaign of up to four wells Success

will add substantially to the hydrocarbon
volumes already discovered on the block
and move Catcher further towards
commerctalisation

Kraken - accelerating appraisal to
confirm higher hydrocarbon volumes
Following the 9/02b-3 well on Kraken,
extensive work was undertaken to improve
our understanding of the areal distribution
of the main Heimdal 111 reservoir Our
hypothesis was proven by the successful
9/02b-4 and 9/02b-4z wells which were
hoth dnlled within the Controlled Source
Electrc Magnetic anomaly and 1n50 an area
of high seismic amplitudes The 9/02b-04
appraisal well drilled 1n August/September
2010 found much thicker Heumndal III sands
than expected with excellent porosity and
very high ail saturations Additicnally the
oll-down-1o was extended, which we
beheve will sigmificantly increase the
proven otl in place to the east of the fault

Testing of the well 1n such unconsolidated,
highly porous sand proved chailenging
However, our analysis of the well results
suggests that the vertical well was capable
of lowing appro:amately 1,000 barrels per
day (bopd) In turn, this suggests that the
planned horizontal development wells wall
be cable of producing at commerc:al rates

Subsequent to the successful 9/02b-4
appraisal well, the 5/02b-4z exploration
sidetrack was drlled to the west of the
Kraken fault and proved the presence of
both Heimdal 111 and Heimdal I reservoirs
Yet again the reservoir quahty of both was
extremely good No otl water contact was
encountered 1n erther the Heumdal 11 or
Heimdal I, promoting our view of an edge
water drive

We wall now carry out a full evaluation of
the well results to upgrade the 1esource
volumes 1n Kraken The success with the
side track will promote the curtent
prospective resources to the west of the
fault to the contingent category

Development planning and concept
selection studies are underway It 1s
Nautical's intention to become a Production
Operator and we will be recnuniing further
expertise to develop the Kraken
accumulation We plan to submut the Field
Development Plan (FDP} to the Government
1n 2011 and see first 01l 1n 2013

Mariner - Crystalhiging Sigmificant
Value Whilst Retaining Exposure to
Upside

The operator, Statoll (UK ) Ltd, assisted by
the Joint Venture partners has made good
progress in advancing the understanding
of the subsurface, required facilities, o1l
processing and marketing required to pass
through the Preliminary Project Sanction
Decision Gate (DG2)
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Rohust geomodels and reservoun stmulation
models have been completed for both the
Maureen and Hexmdal Sandstones These
have been used to understand flud flow,
optimise the placement of producer wells
and to size the facilities

As an active Joint Venture pariner, Nautical
has been mstrumental in modifying the
sedimentalogical medel by utihsing its
detailed regional knowledge to identafy
additional remobilised sands 1n the Lista
Formation This has been reflected in
mproved connectivity 1n the Hetmdal
simulation model! and in combination with
results from the Maureen model has
Jusufied an increase 1n contingent
recoverable resources During the period an
exhaustive Concept Selection process
conciuded that the favoured development
concept 15 a fixed platform with one or two
drilling rigs enabling the rapid dnlling of
wells to prolong plateau production The
Maureen reservolr will be developed first
with the Heimdal being drilled at such a
pace as to maintain plateau production

In September 2010 the Company signed a
Sale and Purchase Agreement with Statoil
for the sale of a 20 6667% mierest and
asscciated rights in Manner for total
consideration of £87 5m Additionally
Statoil will provide a maximum £3 Om carry
of the Company's cost through to final
mvestment decision Following completion,
Nautical's interest 1n the Licence will be
6% The transaction 15 pending approval
from the joint venture partners in the block
and fiom the Department of Energy and
Chmate Change (DECC) The decision to
partially sell our stake \n Mariner has
crystallised sigmficant value for our
shareholders, whilst retaining exposure, at
an appropnate level for a company of our
s1ze, to the considerable upside we see In
the project

Statoll has deployed considerable resources
towards the Marnner development and
shares Nautical's enthusiasm to dnve the
project through Decision Gate 2 1n early
2011 leading to development sanction and
FDP submuttal, most Likely by the end of
2011/early 2012

Development planning and concept selection studies
are underway It 1s Nautical's intention to become a
Production Operator and we will be recruiting further
expertise to develop the Kraken accumulation We plan
to submit the Field Development Plan (FDP) to the
Government 1n 2011 and see first o1l 1n 2013

Exploration and appraisal
opportunities — potential for another
“Catcher”

Nautical s strategy 1s to manage and drill

a portfolio of opportunities which, given
success, can matenally promote growth by
adding to the existing Kiaken, Catcher and
Mariner discoveries We will continue to
acquure blocks, primanly through low cost
hcensing awards, with a strategy of adding
value and farming out prier to dnlling,
whilst relinquishing blocks with
diminished prospectivity, thus enabling
resources to be directed towards the most
plomising areas

Near term exploration dnliing 1s planned on
the large Merrow prospect 1n the East Insh
Sea Basin We are currently identifying an
onshorte site from which to dnll offshore
and the planning process is cngoing The
well 15 expected to spud 1n early 2011 This
will be followed by an appraisal well on the
Tudor Rose heavy oil discovery in block
14/30 to determine the o1l gravaty and
viscosity of the crude and investigate a
potenual deeper ol water contact (OWC)

Elsewhere 1n the UKCS we continue to
evaluate the operated blocks around Kraken
assessing the unphcations of the successful
appraisal well for hydrocarbon bearing sand
chstributton Furthermore, applications have
been made 11t the UKCS 26th Licensing
Round for blocks adjacent to our existing
discovenes and also for those containing
selected, high impact prospects

Nautical has established a new area of
focus 1n the Celtic Sea, offshore Ireland

We have entered 1nto agreements with
Provident Resources to mvestigate the
development potential of the Baltimore and
Nemo heavy o1l discoveries It has been
particularly gratifying that Providence
approached Nautical, acknowledging our
expertise 1n the evaluation and marketing
of heavy crude

In France the main activity duning the
year has been the marketing of the large
Audignon Ridge gas prospect We are
confldent that a farmout deal will result in
carried activity which will dertsk the
prospect prior to dnilhing 1n 2012

Financial strength

The Company carefully managed 1ts cash
resources during the year and remains debt
free Subsequent to the year end 1n August
2010 Nautical completed a placing raising
net proceeds of £28 8m This was followed
by the partial sale of Manner in September,
which upon comptletion will inject a further
£87 5m into the Company

The combined cash resources arsing from
these events not only ensure that Nautical
15 fully funded to meet 1ts planned
exploration and appraisal programme until
the end of 2011, but also provides funds to
meet a substantial proportion of our equity
funding requirements expected for the
Kraken, Catcher and Manner developments

The future - moving towards
development

We look forward to becomuing a Production
Operator in the next year allowing us to
progress Kraken to development, as well as
continuing as a supportive jownt venture
partner as FDPs are submutted for Catcher
and Marner We will seek to add resources
through the drilling of our exploration and
appraisal portfolio Your Board is pleased
that the potential of Nautical has been
recogntsed by the equity markets through
an 1ncreased share price and by the
success of the recent placing We will seek
to continue this trend 1n the comung years

Steve Jenkins
Chief Executive QOfficer
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Operational review

Our portfolio As at 8 October 2010

Kraken: Block 9/2b
({Licence P1077 — 35% interest)

» Successful 9/02h-4 appraisat well and

9/02b-4z exploration sidetrack dnlled

m Q3 2010
» 9/02b-4 encountered better than
expected Heimdal III reservoir of 2bm
thickness, average porosity of 39% and
average o1l saturation of 87% The well
tested with productivity index of 2bpd/
psl confirming excellent mult-Darcy
quality reservoir
9/02b-4z exploration stde track found
excellent quahty cll-beanng Heimdal 111
and Heumdal I reservour west of the
Kraken fault
Target to submit FDP 1 2011 wath first
ollin 2013
Contingent resources of 83mmbo (gross},
29mmbo (net) east of fault (pre 9/02h-4}
The 9/02b-4z well discovered contingent
resources west of the fault

Catcher: Blocks 28/9

and 28/10c

{Licence P1430 - 15% interest)

» June 2010 Catcher and Catcher East hght
ol discovenes (31° API)

(04 2010 drnilling of up to 4 wells on high
graded prospects

Target FEOP submission end 2011 and first
o1l 2013

Catcher and Catcher East best estimate
contingent resources 74mmbo (gross),
11mmbo {net)

Mariner: Block 9/11a

{Licence P335 - 6 0% Interest — subject

to completion of sale of 20 6667%)

» This highly appraised field has produced

662,000 barrels of o1l on extended test at

a maximum rate of 14,991bopd (14 5 API)

from the Maureen Formauon sands and

has flowed up to 1,133bopd fiom the

shallower Heimdal reservolr

3D se1smte and an Ocean Bottom Cable

{OBC} survey acquired md 2008 have

1mproved imaging of both Heundal and

Maureen 1eservoirs

Platform site survey acquired 1h summet

2009 and Geotechntcal boreholes drilled

Development concept selection cngoing

and expected to be completed early

In 2011

No more dnlling 15 required and FDP

submission 1s planned for 2011/12 with

first o1l 1n 2015

SPA signed with Statol on 22 September

2010 which wall reduce Nautical's share

from 26 67% to 6% upon completion

» Best estimate contingent resources
(development pending) of 430mmbo
(gross), 26mmbo (net at 6% share)

=

=

=

=

w

£

x

=

Mermaid: Block 9/11c

(Licenco P979 - 80% intarest)

» Possible southern extenston of Mariner
accumulation in Heimdal Sandstone

Tudor Rose: Block 14/30a

{Licence P1463 - 20% interest)

» The block contains the Tudor Rose
discovery

» Well planned for 2011 to establish APl
gravity and viscosity and invesugate
deeper o1l water contact {(OWC)

» Contingent rescurces of 49mmbo (gross),
10mmbo (net), with prospective
resources upside of 84mmbo {gross),
17mmbo (net}

» Exploration upside especially in Buffalo
Prospect {Cretaceous, Kopervik Sandstone}

Merrow: Blocks 113/29¢
and 113/30

{Licence P1475 — 50% interest)

» The blocks lie on the edge of the East
Insh Sea basin

» Large gas prospect adjacent 10 Walney
Island

¥ Best estimate prospeciive resources
290bcf {gross) and 145bef (net)

» Onshore dnll site being identified for
2011 dnling

Spaniards: Block 15/21g

(Licences P1655 - 30% interest)

+ Reprocessed 3D seismic defines large
Jurassic prospect downdip from
15/21a-38 oil discovery

» Seismic mdicates reservolr thickens
downdip

» Significant o1l column implied from
pressure data 1n discovery well

Blocks 3/22 and 3/26
(Licences P1573 and P1574 - 40% interest)
» New 2D hugh density, high resclution
data confirms Lusca prospect
» EM feasihility studies positive
Reviewing benefit of acquinng an
EM survey

Keddington

{Licence PEDLOQS — 10% interest)

» UK onshore producing fleld in
Lincolnshire

» K-3 and K-3z honizontal sidetracks dnilled
1 201¢ encountered 235 m of hiydrocarbon
bearing Carbontferous Sand

» Production averaging 193bopd and
737mef of gas

Baltimore: Ireland

(40% interest)

» Licensing option 10/1 in the North Celtic
Sea Basin containing the Baltimore
heavy o1l discovery with up to 300mmbo
n place

Nemo: Ireland

(25% interest)

» Licensing option 2/07 in the North Celtic
Sea Basin contaimng the Nemoe heavy
o1l discovery with up to 230mmbo
1n place

St Laurent: France

(22% interest)

» Located in Aquitaine Basin,

south-west France

Contains large Audignon Ridge subsalt

gas prospect

Currently seelang farminee to de-nisk

prospect prior to driling

» Also contains the Grenade-Sur- Ardour
well which produced 8,000 barrels in a
seres of tests

b

b

Pontenx: France

{20% interest)

» Located in the Parentis Basin,
south-west France

» The permit contains the abandoned
Mirmizan Nord field which produced
3 5mmbls of 12 API oil and a number
of mgh potential prospects

Scylla south: Blocks 9/6

and 9/7

(Licences P1575 — 35% interest)

» Contains probable continuation of Scylla
channel and possible Kraken analogue

» Seismic repiocessing under way

Blocks 15/7 and 15/12a

{Licences P1652 — 33% interest)

» Contains Funnel and Atco prospects

» Orthogonal CSEM lines to be acquired
m 2011

Gex: France

{20% imterest)

» Locatedin eastern France near the Swiss
border the offical award granted May 2009

» Previous dnlhing on the block
encounsered shallow heavy o1l

» Additional prospectivity on large
bagsement mvolved anticlines at
Trniassic level
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Operational review

UK continental shelf
Kraken

Appraisal well 9/02b-4 was spudded 1n August 2010
and successfully encountered the target Heimdal Unit
[T sandstone, with a gross o1l column of 49 metres The
well proved a substantially thicker and higher porosity
main Heimdal Unit III reservoir than expected

Key stats

» Contains Kraken o1l
discovery

» Large 3 way dip closed
structure

» 9/02b-4 appraisal well
confirmed substantial
accumulation 1n the core area

» 9/02b-4z exploration
sidetrack confirmed
resources to the west of
the Kraken Fault

» Lowest viscosity heavy ol
(15° API) being considered
for development on East
Shetland Platform
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Block 9/2b (Licence P1077)

{Nautical 35% Operator)

Block 9/2b was awarded as Nautical's first
licence 1n the UKCS 1n September 2003
The Block 15 located on the East Shetland
Platform, west of the North Viking Graben
Well 9/02-1A, dnlled in 1985, had
previgusly tested ol from a reservour
belonging to the Heimdal Sandstone
Member of the Tertiary (Palaeocene)
system Since award of the hcence,
Nautical has drilied 3 appraisal wells and
an exploration sidetrack, successfully
proving Kraken to be a substantial o1l
accumulatien which can be now be
progressed to development planmng

The 1esults of 9/02h-2, the kcence
commutment well dnlled in 2007, proved an
ol column of at least 77m and an cil-down-
to {ODT) 51 metres deeper than 9/02-1A
discovery This appraisal well not only
encountered oll bearng Heimdal
Sandstone which can be correlated with
the 9/02-1A well (known as Ut I1I sands)
but alse penetrated an additional deeper 1l
beanng Hexmdal Urnut | sandstone

A third appraisal well, 9/02b-3, dnlled in
September 2008, was located 1n a down dip
area to the northeast of the discovery wells
n order 1o substantiate the oil column by
mtersecting the ol water contact and to
mvestgate the upside (P10) resources
However, 1n this outlying area, the Heindal
Sandstone Member proved to be absent

Subsequent to the outcome of the 9/02b-3
well sigmificant work has been undertaken
to mmprove the understandmg of the areal
distnbution of the reservoir and reduce the
nsk of further appraisat drnilhng, including a
Controlled Source Electto Magnetic (CSEM)
survey, depesitional modeling and speciahst
seismic and sedimentology studies The
results of this work concluded that the
Heimdal sands, sourced from the west, have
been channelled southwards along the
topographic low created by the basement
Kraken Fault The CSEM survey confirmed
an anomaly over both 9/02-1A and 9/02b-2,
extending to the west of the Kraken fault
and to the south of well 9/02-1A An
optumized appraisal location was selected
on the basis of selsmic amplitudes and
sand distnbution medels, densked by the
presence of the CSEM anomaly

Appraisal well 8/02b-4 was spudded 1n
August 2010 and successfully encountered
the target Heimdal Unit 11l sandstone, with
a gross o1l column of 49 metres The well
proved a substantially thicker and higher
porosity main Heundal Umt I reservolr
than expected Prehminary log evaluation
indicates that the Hermdal Unut I3 main
sand contains 25 metres of net a1l pay

with an average porosity of 38 8% and an
average oll saturation of 87 2% An o1l water
contact was not encountered in the
Heimdal Unit 11 main sand and thus the
Kraken discovery oil-down-to now extends
to 1,199 metres true vertical depth subsea
(TVDss) The success of 3/02b-4 imphes
that high amphtude seismic anomalies may
reflect high porosity o1l beaning sands Such
anomalies can be mapped over the length
of the Kraken structure and will be adopted
to refine the net hydrocarbon bearing sand
distribution maps and subsequently to
calculate a new oul in place volume and
best estinate contingent resources

The 9/02-4 test programme was
speaifically designed to recover
uncontaminated reservoir fluid samples
and to confirm the productivity of the
reservolr tested in the discovery well,
9/02-1A, using a test string comprising
sand screens and an electric submersible
pump The well was mmnially pumped ata
restricted rate of 300 barrels per day and
samples obtained A productivity index of
2 barrels per day/psi was indicated during
this flow penod, confirming the excellent
mulfi-Darcy quality of the reservowr
Subsequent to this flow period, the
productivity declined markedly

An mjectivity test was completed

which showed an injectivity index of
approximately 2bpd/psi, indicating that the
productivity decline was due to the
plugging of the sand screens, rather than a
1eservolr or ol qualty 1ssue Thus the key
objectives have been substantially met,
although operaticnal problems caused by
the exceptional quality of the 1eservoir
meant that it was not possible to flow the
well at a stable production rate However
our analysis of the well results indicate
that the vertical well was capable of
flowing at approximately 1,000 bopd

The development will consist of a number
of honzontal wells and we are very
encouraged that these will flow at
commercial rates

Following the 9/02b-4 production test, the
lower section of the well was abandoned
and the 9/02h-4z sidetrack was drilled

to validate an exploration target to the
west of the Kraken Fault The sidetrack
successfully encountered oil beanng sands
i both the Heimdal Unat I1I and Heimdal
Umnt I reservoirs with true net o1l pays of
12 8 metres and 10 7 metres respectively
Prehiminary evaluation inchcates that
average porosities in both units are very
high, around 40%, with average cil
saturations of 85% The Heimdat Unit 1
reservolr has significantly higher net to
gross and porosity than previously
encountered 1n any Kraken well

Q11 samples have now been recovered from
the Heimdal Unat III reservoir from all three
successful wells Gravity of the o1l 15 14-15°
API and viscosity 15 around 110cp or less,
being a mgher API and much less viscous
than both the adjacent Bressay (400-500cp)
and Bentley (600-1,100cp) discoveries and
moTle similar to the producing Captain Field
which came on production 1n 1997, peaked
at 78,000bopd 1n 2002, curzently averages
around 45 000bopd and 1s expected to
exceed a 50% recovery factor

Since an o1l water contact has not been
encountered 1n any of the wells, 1t 15
probable that the acquifer support will be
through an edge water drnive rather than a
bottom water drive This 1s supported by
geochemucal analysts which indicates that,
although the o1l 15 biodegraded, 1t 1s not
water washed which implies that the water
leg 1s remote from the core of the structure
These aspects enhance the oppertunity to
control water production and design water
1njection to optimise both ol production
and ultimate recovery from the reservoir

Development planning and concept
selection studies are under way Nautical's
current plan 1s for a phased development
initially targeting the resources in the
core area to the east of the Kraken Fault

A 1eview of the market to identify the
avallability of development equipment 1s
being undertaken to enable Kraken to be
brought onstream 1n an accelerated time
frame Aspart of Nautical's marketing
initiative, 1t 1s encouraging to note that an
assay has been carried out by a refiner who
has expressed a strong desire to purchase
Kraken crude A Field Development Flan
(FDF) 15 to be submutted 1n 2011 with first
ollin 2013

As a consequence of the decision by
Nautical's joint venture partner, Canamens
North Sea Energy Limited (Canamens), not
to parucipate 1n the 3/02h-4 well, the
equuty for the 9/02b-4 well has been
Nautical 70% and Celtic O1] Limited (Celtic)
30% Both Canamens and Celtic decided
not to participate in the 9/02b-4z sidetrack
and Nautical sele risked the exploration
well at 100% equity Under the terms of
the Joint Cperating Agreement, Celtic

are permutted to buy back into 9/02b-4z
well and Canamens are permitted to buy
back into the $/02b-4 and 9/02b-4z wells
However, to do so, both partners will have
to pay to Nautical two times thelir equity
interest (Celic 30%, Canamens 35%} of
that part of the drilling campaign to which
they did not contnbute to be entitled to
participate fully in the development




Nautical Petroleum plc Annual report and accounts 2010

10
Operational review

UK continental shelf

Cat Cher To date Catcher and Catcher East have
proved to be one of the largest discoveries
1n the UKCS 1n the last decade
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Key stats

» Catcher and Catcher kast
discoveries established a
large resource and opened
up a new low nsk fairway

» 4 exploration wells to be
dnlled 1n Autumn 2010

» Light o1l with API gravaty of
31 degrees 1n excellent
quality reservoir

Block 28/9 and 28/10c
{Licence P1430)

(Naut:cal 15%)

This Traditional Block 1s located on the
West Central Platform, west of the Central
Graben and the nearby Bittern Field
Regional and block spectfic evaluation was
oniginally carried out with the operator
prior to application and successful award 1n
the 24th Seaward Licensing Round

The blocks contain the large Catcher and
Catcher East discovernes in the Palacocene
{Cromarty Sandstone) and Eocene (Middle
Tay Sandstone) respectively Mapping has
demonstrated several similar and robust
undrilled prospects at both stratigraphic
levels plus two large Jurassic (Fulmar
Sand} prospects

The Catcher discovery well 28/09-1 was
drilled in June 2010 to a total depth of 1,591
metres measured depth (MD) and
encountered excellent quality ol bearing
reservolr sandstones at the prognosed
Cromarty Sandstone level The discovery
well encountered a 73 metre gross oil
column with a net pay of 274 metres An ol
water contact was intersected at 1,475
metres (MD} Following the discovery a
reservolr test was completed to establish
key fluid characteristics resulting in an o1l
API gravity of 31 degrees, a gas-oll-ratio
(GOR) of 280scf/bbl and o1l viscosity (at
reservolr conditions) of 4 centipolse Well
test interpretation showed the reservolr to
have an average permeability 1n excess of
15 Darcies

Subsequent to the reservorr test the
co-venturers drilled the Catcher East side
track (28/09-1z) which encountered
excellent quahity oil-beanng sandstones
very similar to those seen in the Catcher

discovery well Analysis of the wireline
logs indicated 25 metres (MD) of net
hydrocarbon pay over a gross interval of
over 72 mettes (MD), with 34% average
porosity, 89% average hydrocarbon
saturalion and excellent permeability
Pressure data indicated a common pressure
regime between Catcher East and Catcher
confirming both discovenes to be part of a
single significant o1l accumulation with an
oil column of 81 3 metres

Following the East Catcher discovery, the
south west of the Catcher accumulation
was appraised The 28/09-1y sidetrack was
dniled toa total depih of 1,806 metres (MD)
and suceessfully encountered excellent
quality ol beanng reservolr sandstones at
the target Cromarty Sandstone level Initial
analysis indicates net pay of 20 7 metres
and an ol column of 52 7 metres Fhud
levels are consistent with the o1l water
contact seen In the Catcher discovery well

To date Catcher and Catcher East have
proved to be one of the largest discovernes
1n the UKCS 1n the last decade Gross best
estimate contingent resources are 74mmbo
{11mmbe net) with a further 26mmbo
prospecive resources (dmmbo net) 1n
Catcher North An autumn drilling
campaign of up to 4 wells will now be
carried out prior to commencing fleld
development work Catcher North will be
dnlled along with a well to test the
Varadero Middle Tay Sandstone prospect
which 15 analogous to Catcher East Two
further contingent wells are planned

at Burgman and Carnaby prospects,
depending on success at Varadero The
planned exploration wells have been
substantially derisked post the Catcher
and Catcher East success opening up a
new lower nisk play fairway throughout
the blocks
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] In September 2010 the Company signed
Marlner a Sale and Purchase Agreement with
Statoll for the sale of a 20 6667% 1nterest
and associated nights in Manner for total
consideration of £87 5m
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Key stats

» Large o1l accumulations 1n
the Maureen and Heimndal

» Highly appraised with
16 wells

» 63 day test produced 662,000
barrels at 10,000+bopd

» 145 API ol

Mariner Block 9/11a
(Licence P335)

(Nautical 6 0% subject to completion of sale
of 20 6667%)

Operated by Statoil Hydro ASA and
located on the East Shetland Platform,
west of the Viking Graben, the Manner ail
accumulation, discovered 1n 1981 and wath
15 subsequent well penstrations, 15 the
largest, most highly appraised undeveloped
discovery 1n the UKCS These wells have
tested o1l at 1,000 to 1,595bopd from

both the Palacocene Maureen Sandstone
and the shallower Heimdal Sandstone
Both sands have excellent reservoir
characternistics and dunng an extended
well test (EWT) 1n 1997 a single honizontal
well 1n the Maureen Sandstone produced
662,000 barrels of o1l over 63 days at a
maximum fate of 14,991bopd (14 5 AFPI)

Interpretation and integration of the
subsurface seismic and geological data has
enabled the operator to update the
geological models for the Heimdal and
Maureen reservolrs The geclogical models
have been upscaled and converted into
reservolr simulation models to generate
producticn profiles for a large number of
development scenarios The improved
understanding of the field has allowed

the subsurface development plan to be
optumused, particularly with regard to well
design and well placement The Maureen
reservolr will be developed using single
branch long horizontai wells and deviated
multi-lateral wells will be used to develop
the shallower Heindal reservour The
Maureen wells will be drilled first as they
are expected to produce at initial individual
raies 1n excess of 20,000bopd Dnlling of
the Hemndal reservoir will be schedled to
maintain the production profite and wells
will be located on a close spacing to obtain
a mgh recovery factor This optimised
develcpment has resulted 1n a substantial
LNCrease 1N resources with our latest
estimates being up to 430mmbo {(26mmbo
net) recoverable for both the Maureen and
Heirndal reservoirs over the life of the field

In parallel wath the subsurface modelhng,
significant progress has been made on
driling and well design The key 1ssues
that are being resolved are the method

of sand control for each reservour and the
type of artificial hift to be used to boost the
production rate of the viscous crude The
operator 1s also iInvestigating the benefits of

pre-dnling some Maureen wells to boost
production at start-up

The operator has scieened a number of
different development concepts and the
preferred concept of a steel PDQ jacket with
floating storage and il transportation by
shuttle tanker has been agreed The major
remaining vanables to be defined are the
number of well slots and whether to have 1
or 2 dnlling rigs on the platform Contracts
have been awarded for studies to define the
preferred concept 1n sufficient detail to
meet the requirements of Decision Gate 2
(Preliminary Project Sanction)

The hase case development includes
blending the crude wath hghter
hydrocarbons to increase the efflciency of
the topside separation and reduce the size
of the processing equipment The blending
wi1ll also have a positive impact on the sale
value of the exported crude Marketing
studies are researching potential customers
for Marner production and the likely price
cifferential for the resulting Manner blend
Nautical 1s taking a very pro-active role

1n these discussions as it 1s considered
that there1s a strong demand amongst
spectalist refiners for Manner-type crudes
and that this should be reflected in the
selling price assumed 11 the econcmics

The screening work carried out so

far indicates that the total Marnner
development cost {capex + opex) could be
as low as $25/bbl which means the project
has robust economics The Operator 15
moving the project ahead with Decision
Gate 2 planned for early in 2011 Thas will
be followed by Front End Engineering and
Design (FEED) and an Environmental
Impact Assessment {(EIA) which will be
completedin 2011 Project sanction by the
field partners and FDP submuission 1s
scheduled for 2011/12 with first o1l
expectedin 2015

In September 2010 the Company signed a
Sale and Purchase Agreement with Statol
for the sale of a 20 6667% 1nterest and
associated nghts 1n Mariner for total
consideration of £87 5m Additionally
Statod will provide a maxumum £3 0m carry
of the Company s cost through to final
investment decision Following completion
Nautical s interest in the Licence will be
6% The transaction 15 pending approval
from the joint venture partners in the block
and the Department of Energy and Chimate
Change (DECC)
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T d R Block 14 /30 a Tudor Rose appraisal well A site survey
u OI O Se has been completed with the main alm
(LICBIICB Pl463) of the well being the determination of
(Nautical 20%) the API gravity and viscosity of the o1l

Nautical attnbutes 49mmbo of gross
Located 1n the Outer Moray Firth adjacent best estimate contingent resources

to Ivanhoe, Rob Roy and Goldeneye (10mmbo net} with a further 84mmbo
Fields this Traditional Licence, contains of gross best estimate prospective
ane undeveloped discovery, 14/30a-2, resources in the east of the structure
named Tudor Rose The discovery well (17mmbonet} Further prospectivity
encountered a 24 metre otl column beneath 15 evidenced on the reprocessed seismic
a 3 metre gas cap at around 1,000 metres 1n the Lower Cretaceous, Kopervik
subsea withuin Tertiary, Dornoch Formation  Sandstone named Buffalo} which 1s along
sands The western pinchout of the trend from the recently developed Rochelle
Key stats Dornoch sands was confirmed by the Field 1n Block 15/27 Several other Jurassic
interpretation of 208 square kilometres leads at Sgiath formation level underhe the
of 3D seismic A deeper o1l water contact Tudor Rose discovery
» Contains undeveloped (OWC)1s indicated on this seismuc which
Tudor Rose dlSCOVGI’V & will be investigated by the planned 2011
Buffalo prospect

» Well planned for 2011

Tudor Rose 15 an
undeveloped o1l discovery
which 1s scheduled to be
dnlled and tested 1n 2011.
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Merrow

Key stats

» Large gas prospect in
East Insh Sea Basin

» Planned 2011 well to be
drilled from onshore location

The joint venture 18
currently identifying an
onshore location from

which to drill a directional

well offshore to test the
Merrow prospect in 2011

Blocks 113/29c¢ and 113/30
(Licence P1475)

(Nautical 50% Qpetrator}

Blocks 113/19¢ and 113/30, Traditional
Licences awarded 1n the 24th Seaward
Licensing Round in 2007, are located in

the East Insh Sea Basin adjacent to Walney
Island on the Cumbnan coast Offshore
the basin 1s essentially gas prospective
although o1l shows have been encountered
1n early onshore wells and commerciat o1l
1s discovered further south, for instance

at the Lennox Field, offshore Southport
Immediately to the west are the Ormonde
North and South cdiscovenes in the Triassic
Ormskuk Sandstone and further to the
west at the 113/27-2 well, the deeper
Permian Collyhurst Sandstone has tested
gas at productive rates Onshore the
Collyhurst Sandstone 1s the productive
reservolr at the Elswick Field some 35km
to the south east near Blackpool

The pnmary prospect 1n Block 113/29¢,
which has resulted from the interpretation
of over 700 kalometres of reprocessed

offshote, transition zone and onshore
Se1smic, comprises a dual prospect target,
a large Collyhurst Sandstone structure
overlan by a smaller Ormskirk Sandstone
structure Regronal geological studies
combined with gravity, magnetics and
outerep data indicates that the deeper
Collyhurst reservolr ies in an optunal area
for the deposttion of aeclian sands which
would exhit better reservoir gquakties
than seen elsewhere 1 the basin Gross
best estimate prospective resources for
Merrow with an aeclian reservoir are
estimated at 290bcf (145bcf net)

To take advantage of much cheaper
onshore dnlling costs a coastal site has
been 1denbfied from which to dnll a
deviated well to target the Collyhurst
prospeci and planning 1s in progress with a
view to dnling in 2011 For well design
reasons, an onshore well does not allow the
testing of the shallower Merrow Crmskark
structure at an opuimum location, but
subject to its findings there are a number of
other Ormskirk leads on the Blocks to be
reviewed, such as Sea Serpent, a prospect
1n Bleck 113/30
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Spaniards

Block 15/21g
(Licence P1655)

(Nautical 30%)

Situated 1n the Witch Ground Graben in the
Cuter Moray Firth, Block 15/21g1s
1mmediately west of the Scott Field and
contains the large Spamards Jurassic
prospect downdip from the 15/21-38 well
which tested 2,660bopd of 25° API ail from
the Galley Sandstone

Seismic amphtude mapping indicates the
reservolr thickens downdip both to the
north east and north west of the discovery
well Further pressure analysis from the
well suggests the potential for a long o1l
column Additional progpectivity has been
mapped i the Ditk Sand (Ryazaman to
Upper Volgian age) which 1s denved off the
Halibut Horst and deposited as a sand
apron to the north, pinching out to the east

Since the prospect was partially withun
Block 15/21 the Spaniards Joint Venture has
proposed to drill a joint well 1n the near
futuze with the Nexen operated group

Keddington

Licence PEDLO05

{Nautical 10%)

Onshore Licence PEDLO0S {Remainder)
contains the producing Keddington o1l field
and North Somercotes gas prospect, both
adjacent to the Saltfleetby gas field

Production of around 50bopd was tutially
from Keddington-1 and -2y wells In order
to access further reserves the Keddington-3
sidetrack was dnlled as a re-entry and
horizontal sidetrack from the Keddington-2
“donor well” 1n Apnl 2010 A total of 235
metres of sand, including 226 metres in the
Main Unit 1 reservolr imnterval was
encountered by the Keddington-3 and

3z wells

The well has been f1ee flowing o and gas
since June 2010 at an average rate of 193
barrels of o1l per day Nautical estimates
that the gross remaining reserves 1o the
field are 0 3mmbo

The well 15 also producing sigmficant
guantities of gas with the average daily
rates of 737,000 cubic feet of gas per day
The productivity of the well 1s better than
expected while the provenance of the gas
and the opportunities it represents are
undet study by the cperator, Egdon
Resources plc
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France

The St Laurent Permit
contains a large gas
prospect with 3TCF gross
best estimate prospective
Tesources

St Laurent

St Laurent Key stats

» Large subsalt gas prospect 1n
the Tniassic Bunter
Sandstone under the
Audignon Ridge with 3TCF
gross best estimate
prospective resources

St Laurent Permit (Nautical 22%)

The Saint Laurent Permit 1n South West
France contains several large hydrocarbon
exploraticn plays and the undeveloped
Grenade heavy ol accurmulation The
discovery well, Grenade-Sur-Adour-1 was
dnlled by SNEAP (E}f} in 1975 and
encountered a 97 metre o1l column of 10° API
oll1n Cretaceous Albian carbonates Between
1976 and 1985 around 8,000 barrels of o1l
were recovered from intermittent tests, the
well being finally plugged and abandoned
dunng a penod of low o pnices 1n 1985

The Grenade 3 appraisal well dnlied 1n 2008
did not encounter hydrocarhbons Studies are

focused on determiming the extent of this
accumulation and whether to sidetrack or
abandon the GAR-3 well Best estimate
gross oll in place 1s now estimated to be 88
rmullion harrels (0 9 malhon net recoverable)

Deeper in the geological section to the
south-west the joint venture has reprocessed
2D sewsmic data and successfully delineated
a large subsalt gas prospect in the Triassic
Bunter Sandstone under the Audignon
Ridge The operator estimates best nat
prospective resources of 3TCF (660BCF net
to Nautical) A farmin partner 1s being sought
prior to dnlling this ngh potential prospect
The Consell De Mines granted a renewal of
the St Laurent permit up to August 2013
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Finance Director’s review

Will Mathers
Finance Director

Subsequent to year end 1n
August 2010 we completed
a private placing raising
anet £28 8m Upon
completion the partial

sale of Mariner will provide
additional funding of £875m
These events, combined
with the improved share
price, have significantly
strengthened the financial
position of the Group

The year ended 30 June 2010 was a pivotal
penod for Nautical We continued to
manage our portfolic and cash resources
wisely during the year and remarned debt
free Subsequent to year end 1n August
2010 we completed a private placing
raising a net £28 8m Upon completion the
partial sale of Mariner will provide
additional funding of £87 5m These events,
combined with the improved share price,
have significantly strengthened the
financial position of the Group

Results

The Group made a loss after taxation of
£2 3m for the year (2009 £5 9m) This
mcluded exploration write-offs of £0 2m
(2009 £4 1), pre-hicence expenditure of
E£04m (2009 £0 5m) and admunistrative
expenses of £1 6m (2009 £1 6m)

Revenue of £68K received durnng the year
was attributable to the cnshore Keddington
field Interest income of £0 3m {2009 £0 8m)
was down significantly from the prior year
due to continuing low interest 1ates and the
reduced cash resources of the Group 1n
comparison to the prior year The result
included a £0 1m foreign exchange loss
{2009 £0 5m gain), comprnsing of a £0 3m
loss on the revaluation of the conditional
habihities denominated 1n US dollars and a
gain of £0 2m on US dotlar cash balances

Administration costs of £1 6m included
£10m (2009 £1 0m) refated to staff costs
and a non cash charge of £0 1m {2009

£0 2m) ansing from new share options
1ssued to Dhrectors and employees 1n
January 2010 The taxation gain of £0 2m
{2009 £07m gain) has ansen from
movements on the deferred tax habihity
relating to an increase in tax losses of

£1 8m offset by an increase in capital
allowances of £1 6m

Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2010, the Group had net

assets of £57 7m (2009 £59 8m), dominated
by capitalised exploration and evaluation
assets of £556 3m (2009 £48 9m) and cash
and depostis of £11 7m (2009 £19 1m)

Exploration and evaluation assets of

£55 3mnclude capitalised costs of £31 1m
for Marnner (Block 9/11a), £20 3m for Kraken
(Block 9/2b) and £2 2m for Catcher

(Block 28/9)

The Group remains debt free and Nautical's
£7 5m secured debt facility with the Bank
of Scotland (Lloyds Banking Group)
remains undrawn and available for working
capttal purposes

Cash flow

Qur net cash spend for the year was £8 3m,
resulting in cash and deposits at year end
of £117m

In addition to net expenditure on operating
expenses of £1 7m the Group incurred
expenditure of £6 6m (2009 £11 5m) on its
exploration and evaluation assets dunng
the year, which included £3 Om spent on
Mariner, £0 9m on Kraken, £2 1m on
Catcher and £0 6m on the remaining
portfolio

Post Balance Sheet Events

Subsequent to the year end, Nautical
successfully completed a placing of
24,280,000 New Orcdinary Shares at a

price of 125 pence per share to raise

gross proceeds of £30 35m (£28 8m net

of expenses) The price of 125 pence
represented a 12 6% discount to the closing
price of the shares upon the announcement
of the placing Following the adrmussion of
the shareson 31 August 2010 there are
87,688,291 shares 1n 1ssue

In addition to the primary placing a
secondary placing was completed which
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of the equity funding for the development of Kraken,
Catcher and Marner The timely restructunng of the
portfolio to better match our size puts us 1n an excellent
position to realise the full potential of our assets as
development decisions approach

resulted 1in 13,000,000 shares being sold by
International Energy Group AQ, previously
the Company's largest shareholder The
successful placing was a significant event
for Nauntcatl as it provided the opportumty
to matenally improve the hqundity of the
share register and gain further quality
nstitutional support

On 22 September 2010 the Company signed
a Sale and Purchase Agreement with
Statoul for the sale of a 20 6667% interest
and associated nghts 1n Manner for

total consideration of £875m Following
completion the Company's interest in

the Licence will be 6% The transaction 1s
pending approval from the joint venture
partners in the block and the Department
of Energy and Chmate Change (DECC)
The book value of the assets sold was

£31 1m as at 30 June 2010 The transaction
should benefit from re-investment relief
thereby mmimising any tax consequences

Proceeds from the sale will contribute a
significant part of the equity funding for
the development of Kraken, Catcher and
Manner The timely restructuring of the
portfohio to better match our size puts us in
an excellent position to realise the full
potential of our assets as development
decisions approach

\
|
\
Proceeds from the sale will contnibute a significant part

Qutlook

The successful transition of the Group's
assets into the development phase will
depend not only on continued technical
success, but also on the ability of the
Group to obtain approprnate financing
prior to Field Development Plan approvals
being granted

As a consequence the strength of capital
markets and the continued availlability of
debt and equity funding remain crincatl to
Nautical's ability to successfully execute
1ts plansgoing forward The availlability of
such funding will continue to be influenced
by macre-economic events, including oil
price fluctuations and the overall state of
the ecenomy, all of which rernamn cuisicde
the contol of Nautical Despite this reality
we remain confident about our ability to
develop our three key assets, Kraken,
Catcher and Manner Based on current

ol prices, we believe that the economics
are robust

Nauticalis well placed to meet 1ts
financial obligations and execute its
upcoming exploration, appraisal and
development programme over the next
12 months We look forward to a very
busy and exciting 2011

Will Mathers
Finance Director

W
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Board of Directors

John Conlin

Non-Executive Director and Chairman
John Conlin joined the Board of Nautical
Petroleum 1n.June 2009 John has over

35 years' expenience 1n the Ou and Gas
industry, including 28 years with Royal
Dutch Shell He has held semor techmical
and management positions with Shell in
the UK, Netherlands, Denmark, Oman,
Australia, Russia and Saud: Arabia

Past executive reles include General
Manager, Woodside Petroleum, and
President, Sakhalin Energy Investment
Company His previous non-executive
Board positions include Hardman
Resources and Delphian Technology John
18 currently non-executive chalrman of
Aurehan Oil and Gas A petioleum
engineer by profession, John holds a BSc
(Hons } in Chenucal Engineenng from
Edinburgh Umiversity and has completed
the Harvard Business School s Advanced
Management Programme

Stephen Jenkins

Chuef Executive Officer

As part of a 28 year career 1n il and gas,
Steve spent the 11 years pnior to Nautical at
Nimur Petroleum as Business Development
and HSE Managet, where he was
respansible for acquisition strategy and
technical dimensions of strategic planning
He successfully led muitidisciplinary teams
to evaluate opportumties in the Amerncas,
the Middle East, North Afnca, and other
QECD countnes, which led to the
acquisition and subsequent turnaround of
a Venezuelan ol producing field

Steve also managed a dnlling programme
that resulted in the quadrupling of
production 1n a field on Sakhahn Island 1n
the Russian Federation and 1dentified and
secured a farm-out with a major o1l
company for a substantial carry on a large
oifield in Kazakhstan

Steve has an MSc 1n Petroleum Geology
and DIC from Impernal College of Science
and Technology, the Umversity of London,
a BSc Hons 1n Geology from the Queen's
Umversity Belfast and 15 a Fellow of the
Geological Socrety of London He1s
currently Chairman of the O1l & Gas
Independents Assoctation (OGIA), and a
director of Ol & Gas UK

Paul Jennings

Commercial Director

Paul's experience 1n the cil and gas sector
exceeds 30 years and spans the roles of
accountant, economist and commercial
and business development director

Paul worked with BP for 17 years, with
responsibiity for projects

1n China, Russia, Mongolia, Mozambique
and West Africa After leaving BP Paul
established exploration and production
companes 1n both Russia and Nigena,
before jointly founding Nautica! Petroleum
with Steve Jenkins
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Will Mathers

Finance Director

Will 15 a Chartered Accountant, qualifying
with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in
Australia and holding a Bachelors degree
from the Umversity of Western Australia
Following 6 years 1n professional practice,
whete he specialised in the energy and
mining sectors, Will held finanaal roles
with Woodside Petroleum Limited, working
in both the USA and Australia

On relocation vo the UK, he worked for the
Royal Dutch/Shell Group in the position of
Global Office Controller for Shell Gas (LPG)
1n Londen Whll was appointed as the
Finance Director of Nautical

1n October 2008

Patrick Kennedy

Non-Executive Director

Patrick1s a Chartered Accountant

with bachelors and masters degrees

in Economics and has over 20 years
experience n business development and
strategy, working with high net worth
individuals and corporate leaders in the UK
and overseas He1s CEQ of the PK Group,
the London based services group and
serves on the Boards of both private and
public companies

A Director since 30 May 2002, Patrick 1s
Chairman of Nautical's Audit Committee

Philip Dimmock

Non-Executive Director

Philip has 30 years’ experience Ln the
upstream ¢1l and gas, both in the UK and
wnternatonally and 15 currently chief
operating officer of Equator Exploration Lid

Phillip spent a significant part of his career
at BP 1n a wide vanety of senior positions,
and at Ranger o1l where he held the post of
Vice President of the International Division,
and served as Chairman He has alsc been
an Executive Officer of the UK Offshore
Operators Association

Philip 15 Chairman of Nautical's
Remuneration Committee
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Directors’ report

The Ditectors present their report together with the Group and Company financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2010

Business review and future activities

The principal activity of the Company 18 ol and gas exploration and appraisal in the UK and Europe The Company 1s a public hmited
company mcorporated 1 England and Wales (company number 4362104) and 1s listed 1n London on AIM under the designation NPE
The Company 1s required by the Companies Act to set out In this report a review of the business of the Group during the year end

30 June 2010 and the position of the Group at the end of year and unceriainties facing the Group The information that fulfils these
requurements, including discussion of the business and future developments, is set out 1n the Chairman's statement, Chief Executive's
review, Operational review and the Finance Director's review

Regults and dividends

The Group's loss for the year was £2 28m {2009 £5 89m), including exploration write offs of £0 23m (2009 £4 06m}, pre-licence
expenditure of £0 43m (2009 £047m) and admunistrative expenses of £1 60m (2003 £1 58m) The Directors do not recommend the
payment of a dinidend

Directors and their interests
The beneficial and other interests of the Directors and their famihies in the shares of the Company for the Directors holding office at
30 June 2010 were

Number of ordinary shares and options held

At 30 June 2010 At 30 June 2009
Ordinary Share Qrdinary Share
shares options ghareg options
Number Number Number Number
§ Jenkins (Chief Executive) 876,096 1,125,000 876,096 975,000
P Jennings (Commercial Director} 876,096 800,000 876,096 700,000
W Mathers (Finance Diuector} Nil 200,000 Ml 100,000
J Conlin {Non-Executive Chairman}) Nil 60,000 il 30,000
P Dimmock {Non-Executive Director) Nil 250,000 Nil 225,000
P Kennedy {Non-Executive Director) 75,000 250,000 75,000 225,000

On 31 August 2010 the Company completed a share placing with the directors participating as follows 8 Jenkins 32,000 shares,
P Jennings 20,000 shares, W Mathers 20,000 shares, J Conhin 8,000 shares, P Dimmock 8,000 shares, P Xennedy 8,000 shazes

The Directors have been Ditectors throughout the year
S Jenkins and P Jennings hold part of their shareholding with TD Waterhouse Nominees (Europe}

Retirement and resighation of Directors

S Jenkins retires 1n accordance with section 99(2) of the Company’s Articles of Association and offers hmself for re-election P Dimmock
Ietires 1n accordance with section 99(2) of the Company's Articles of Association and offers humself for 1e-election J Conlin has informed
the board of his intention 1o resign following the Annual General Meeting on 11 November 2010

Directors’ third party indemnity provisions
The Company maintains indemnity insurance for 1ts Directors and officers against hability 1n respect of proceedings brought by third
parties, subject to the terms and conditions of the Compames Act 2006

Share capital
At 30 June 2010 63,408,291 ordinary shares of 20p each are 1ssued and fully paid On 31 August 2010 the Company completed a placing of
24,280,000 shares, following which there are 87,688,291 shares 1n 1ssue

Substantial shareholders
At B October 2010 notification had been received by the Company of the following who had a disclosable interest 1n 3% or more of the
nominal value of the ordinary share capital of the Company

Number of
shares  Petcentage
MHR Adwvisors LLC 6,952,685 7 93%
BlueGold Capital Management LLP 4,510,164 514%
International Energy Group AG 4,409,425 503%
Shin Cheon Co Lirmited 3814971 4 35%

The Company has not been notified of any other person who has an interest 1n 3% or moere 1n the Company's share capital

Employees

The success of the business depends upon maintaimng a highly qualified and well-motivated workforce and every effort 1s made to
achzeve a commen awareness of the financial and economic factors affecting the performance of the Group Nautical Petroleum is
committed to being an equal opporturity employer and ptans to engage employees with broad backgiounds and skills
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Nominated adviser and broker
The Company has joint brokess, Evolution Secunties Limited and Ambnan Partners Limited Evolutzon Secunties are also the Company's
Nominated Adwviser

Supplier payment policy and practice

It 1s the Group's policy to settle the terms of payment with suppliers when agreeing the terms of the transaction, to ensure that suppliers
are aware of these terms and to abtde by thern Trade creditors at 30 June 2010 amount to 13 days of puichases made 1n the year

(2009 14 days)

Donations
Dunng the year the Group made chantable donations of £ml (2009 £1,050) and no polittcat contributions (2009 £nil)

Financial instruments

The Group's principal finangal instruments compnse cash balances, short term and long term deposits and debtors or creditors that
anse through the normat course of business as set out1n note 20 The financial sk management objectives and policies are discussed
1n note 20

Key performance indicators

The Board reviews the key performance indicators of the business and the Company's progress towards achieving its objectives on a
quarterly basis These KPI's include 1tems such as the financial position of the business, reportable mcidents, operational results

and resources

Principal business risks

The Directors are responsible for the effectiveness of the Group s nsk management activities and internal control processes Asa
participant in the upstream oil & gas industry, Nautical 1s exposed to a wide range of risks in the conduct of 1ts operations

These nsksinclude

Financial risks

»  Cost inflation

»  Ofl price movements and fluctuation 1n discounts for heavy cil
» Adverse taxation legislauve changes

» Co-venturer and third party counterparty credit nisk

» Adverse foreign exchange movements

Operational risks

Loss of key employees

Delay and cost overrun on projects, including weather related delay
HSE incidents

Poor 1eservolr performance

Exploration and appraisal well fallures

Fatlure of third party services

¥ o ® T oo

Strategic and external nsks

» Future detenoration of capital markets, mnhibiting efficient equuty and/or debt raising for developments
» Commercial misalignment with co-venturers

»  Matenal fall 1n a1l price

The nsks set out are not exhaustive and additional risks and uncertainties may anse or become matenal in the future Any of the rnsks, as
well as other nsks and uncertainties discussed in this document, could have a matenal adverse effect on our business

There 1s no absolute assurance that the Group's exploration and development activities will be successful The Group's activities may
also be curtailed, delayed or cancelled not only as a result of adverse weather conditions bart also as a result of shortage or delays in the
dehvery of dnlhing ngs and other equipment which, at imes, are 11 short supply The Group seeks to manage these nisks through portfolio
management, balancing nsk across a range of prospects and leads, which carry varying technical and commercial risks, and carefully
managing the financial exposure to each asset in the portfolio through the arrangements set out with joint venture partners

The Group competes with other E&P compames, some of whom have much greater financial resources than the Group, for the
dentification and acquisition of o1l and gas licences and properties and also for the recrutment and retention of skilled personnel

The market price of hydrocarbon products 1s volatile and 1s not within the control of the Group If significant declines occur 1n the price of
o1l or detrimental changes oceur to the UK fiscal regime, the sconomi¢ commerciality of the Groups projects can be sigmficantly reduced
or rendered uneconomic

The successful progresston of the Group's ol and gas assets depends not only on technical success, but also on the abhity of the Group to
cbtain appropnate financing through equity financing, debt financing, farm downs or other means The availability of such funding will
conbinue to be influenced by macro-economic events inctuding o1l price fluctuations and the overall state of the economy, both of which
remain outside the control of the Group There 15 no assurance that the Group will be successful 1n chtaining required financing going
forward If the Group 15 unable to obtain additional financing needed to fulfil its planned work prograrmmes some 1nterests may be
relinquished and/or the scope of the operations reduced
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Directors’ report continued

Going concern

Following the Board's review of the Group's financial position and forward cash forecasts, the Directors are of the view that the Group has
adequate financial resources to continue 1ts operational activities and meet 1ts labilities as and when they fall due for the foreseeable
future and for a period of at least 12 months from the date of authonsation of these financial statements For this reason the financial
statements are prepared on a going concern basis

Post halance sheet events
On 31 August 2010 the Company completed a placing of 24,280,000 new ordinary shares of 20 pence each, at a price per share of 125
pence The placing raised £30 35m (£28 8m net of expenses) Following the admission of the shares there are 87,688,291 shares 1n 1ssue

As part of the placing International Energy Group AG (IEG), the Company's largest shareholder at 30 June 2010 holding 18,309,425 shares
(28 9% of the 1ssued capital), sold 13,000,000 shares Following the sale of the shares IEG holds 4,409,425 ordinary shares representing
5 03% of the enlarged i1ssued capital of the Company

On 22 September 2010 the Company signed a Sale and Purchase Agreement wath Statoil (U K ) Limited (Stateil) for the sale of a 20 6667%
nterest 1n Licence P355, Block 9/11a (the ‘ Licence™), which contains the Mariner discovery Statoll wiill pay total consideration of £87 bm
for a 20 6667% 1nterest 1n the Licence and associated nghts, plus a maximum £3 0m carry of the Company's cost through te final
mvestment decision Following completion the Company's interest in the Licence will be 6% The transaction 15 pending approval from
the joint venture partners in the block and the Depariment of Energy and Climate Change (DECC)} As at 30 June 2010, the book value of
the assets being sold was £31 1m

Board committees
Information on the Audit Commuttee and the Remuneration Commutitee 18 included 1n the Corporate Governance section of the Annual
Report The report of the Remuneration Commuittee will be the subject of an ordinary resolution at the Annual General Meeting

Disclosure of information to the auditors

Having made enquines of fellow Directors and of the Company's auditors, each of the Directors confirms that, to the best of each
Director's knowledge and belief, there 1s no information relevant to the preparation of ther report of which the Company's auditors are
unaware, and each Ditector has taken all the steps a Director might reasonably be expected to have taken to be aware of the relevant
audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that informauon This confitmation 1s given, and should be
interpreted, 1n accordance with the provisions of 5418 of the Companies Act 2006

Auditors
A resolution to reappoint Ernst & Young LLP as auditors witl be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting at a fee to be
agreed 1n due course by the Audit Committee and the Directors

Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting will be held on 16 Tuesday Novemnber 2010 as stated 1n the Notice of Meeting, which accompanies this
Annual Report

On behalf of the Board
Stephen Jenkins

Director
8 October 2010
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The Remuneration Committee of the Board of Duectors 1s responsible for determining and reviewing compensation arrangements for all
Executive Directors The Remuneration Committiee assesses the appropriateness of the nature and amount of emoluments of such
officers on a penodic basis by reference to relevant employment market conditions with the overall objective of ensuring maximum

stakeholder benefit from the retention of a high quality Board and executive team

To assist in achieving these objectives, the Remuneration Committee links the nature and amount of Executive Directors' and officers'

emoluments to the Company's financial and operational performance

Detatls of the nature and amount of each element of the emoluments of each Director of the Company for the previous 12 months are

as follows
Total Total
Salary Fees Bonus Pension 2010 2009
Name £ 000 £/000 £000 £ 000 £'000 £000
S Jenkins 216 - 63 21 300 344
P Jennings 125 - 36 14 176 196
W Mathers 129 - 51 14 194 106
J Conlin - 45 - - 15 1
P Dimmock - 30 - - 30 28
P Kennedy - 30 - - 30 41
[ Willhlams —1esigned 17 October 2008 - - - - ~- 45
H Thanawala - resigned 17 Cctober 2008 - - - - - 16
Total 470 105 150 49 774 778
S Jenkins has entered into a loan agreement with the Company for £4,200 with an outstanding balance due to the Company at
30 June 2010 of £1,750 (2009 £1,645)
The pension 15 a defined contrihution scheme
Share options granted to Directors
Options Options Optwons
held at granted held at Exercise 1ssue Expury
Name June 2009 \n year June 2010 price {n) date date
S Jenking 250,000 - 250,000 8000 07/03/05 07/03/13
300,000 - 300,000 22000 26/09/05 26/09/13
125,000 - 125,000 17700 18/01/07 18/01/15
150,000 - 150,000 21100 18/01/08 18/01/16
150,000 - 150,000 2675 12/01/09 12/01/17
- 150,000 150,000 5750 13/01/10 13/01/18
975,000 150,000 1,125,000
P Jennings 200,000 - 200,000 8000 07/03/05 07/03/13
200,000 - 200,000 22000 26/09/05 26/09/13
75,000 - 75,000 17700 18/01/07 18/01/15
100,000 -~ 100,000 21100 18/01/08 18/01/16
125,000 - 125,000 2675 12/01/09  12/0117
- 100,000 100,000 5750 13/01/10 13/01/18
700,000 100,000 800,000
W Mathers 100,000 - 100,000 3617 13/11/08 13/11/16
- 100,000 100,000 5750 13/01/10 13/01/18
100,000 100,000 200,000
JConlin 30,000 - 30,000 5710 24/06/09 24/06/17
- 30,000 30,000 5760 13/01/10 13/01/18
30,000 30,000 60,000
P Dnmmock 75,000 - 75,000 8000 07/03/05 (Q7/03/13
75,000 - 75,000 22000  26/09/05 26/09/13
25,000 - 25,000 17700 18/01/07 18/01/15
25,000 - 25,000 21100 18/01/08 18/01/16
25,000 - 25,000 2675 12/01/09 12/01/17
- 25,000 25,000 5750 13/01/10 13/01/18
225,000 25000 250,000
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Remuneration report continued

Share options granted to Directors continued

Options Opuions Optiona
held at granted held at Exercise Issue Expuy
Name June 2009 1 year June 2010 price (p) date date
P Kennedy 75,000 - 75,000 8000 (07/03/05 07/03/13
75,000 - 75,000 22000 26/09/05 26/08/13
25,000 - 25,000 17700 18/01/07 18/01/15
25,000 - 25,000 21100 18/01/08 18/01/18
25,000 - 25,000 2675 12/01/09 12/01/17
- 25,000 25,000 5750 13/01/10 13/01/18
225,000 25,000 250,000
Total 2,265,000 430,000 2,685,000

The options were all granted under the Nautical share option scheme rules, whereby from the date of 1ssue 25% are exercisable after
6 months, 25% after 12 months, 25% after 18 months and 25% after 24 months The options must be exeraised within 8 years of 1ssue

None of the Directors exercised options during the year

Philip Dimmock
Chaurman of the Remuneration Committee
8 October 2010

AN
__—
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Corporate governance

As the Company 1s listed on the Alternative Investment Market (AIM) of the London Stock Exchange, 1t 1s not requtred to comply with
the provisions of the Combined Code However, the Board 15 commuitted to the high standards of good corporate governance embodied in
the Combined Code on Corporate Governance and seeks to apply the pninciples of the Combined Code where practicable for a company
of Nautical's s1ze and complexity

Board of Directors
The Board 1s responsible for the direction and overall performance of the Group with emphasis on policy and strategy, financial results
and major operational 155ues

The Code recommends that smailer companies should have at least 2 Non-Executive Directors The Board comprises 3 Executive and
3 Non-Executive Directors, one of whom 1s the Chairman, who are independent of management and do not participate in the Group's
bonus or pension schemes although the Non-Executive Directors have share options and Mr P Kennedy 15 a shareholder

The roles of the Chanman and Chief Executive are separate, thus ensunng a division of responsibility at the head of the Group
The current Executive Directors are all employed under service contracts with the Company

All Directaors are subject to re-election by shareholders every 3 years and, on appointment, at the first Annual General Mesting after
appaintment Appropnate directors and officers’ hatality insurance has been arranged by the Company

Meetings of the Board of Directors
The Board meets at least 4 times a year after all relevant information has been circulated in good time, to discuss a formal scheduled
agenda covenng key areas of the Group s affairs including operational and financial performance

All members of the Board are expectied to attend Board Meetings which are scheduled 1n advance There was 99% attendance at all
meetings throughout the year

Audit Committee

The Audit Commuttee 1s chaired by P Kennedy and its other member s J Conlin Executive Directors may attend by invitation The minutes
of every meeting are taken by the Company Secretary and circulated to the Board at the next Board Meeting at which the Chairman
provides a verbal report of meetings of the Commttee

The Audit Commuttee, which meets at least twice a year, 1s 1esponsible for keeping undet review the scope and results of the audit, its
cost effectiveness and the independence and ohjectinity of the auditors It also has oversight responsihility for public reporting and the
Company’s internal controls

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Commuttee 1s chaired by P Dimmock and 1ts other member 15 J Conlin The minutes of every meeting are taken by the
Company Secretary and circulated to the Beard at the next Board Meeting at which the Chawrman provides a verbal report of meetings of
the Committee

The Remuneration Committee, which meets at least twice a year, 1s responsible for considering the remuneration packages for executive
directors and the bonus and share option strategy for the Group and making recommendations as appiopriate

The Remuneration Committee 15 also responsible for reviewing the performance of the Executive Durectors and ensuring that they are
fairly and responsibly rewarded for their individual contnbutions to the Group's overall performance The Committee's scope extends to
all remuneration of Durectors including honus and share options

None of the Commuttee has any day-to-day involvement 1n runmng the Company

Nominations Committee

The Normnations Commuttee currently comprises S Jenkins, P Dimmock and P Kennedy It reviews and recormnmends to the Board the
appomntment of Directors and 1s charged with ensunng the necessary balance of skills, knowledge and expenence 1s maintatned and
represented on the Board The Nominations Commuttee constders that the current composition of the Board 1s satisfactory to provide the
appropriate governance, administration and busmess counsel 1n 1espect of the Company's affairs

Relations with Shareholders

Communication with shareholders 1s given high pnionity Extensive information about the Gioup s activities 1s provided in the Annuat
Report and Accounts and the Intenm Report, which 1s sent to all shareholders There 1s regular dialogue with institutional imvestors

as well as presentations to analysts at the tume of the release of the annual and intenim results The Company maintains a website

(www nauticalpetroleum com) for the purpose of improving information flow to shareholders as well as potential investors The website
contains all press announcements and financial reports as well as extensive operational information about the Group's activities and
enquuries from individual shareholders on matters relating to their shareholdings and the business of the Group are welcomed The Board
encourages shareholders to attend the Annual General Meeting, at which members of the Board are available to answer questions

Internal controls

The Board 1s responsible for the effectiveness of the Group's internal controls and ts supplied with information to enable 1t to discharge its
duties Internal control systems are designed to meet the particular needs of the Group and to manage 1ather than ehminate the nsk of
farlure to meet business objactives The 1nternal controls cover financial, operational and comphance matters and are reviewed on an
ongoing basts The Group's internal controls can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatermnent or
loss or the nisk of failure to meet business objectives
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Directors’ responsibilities for the financial statements

Group financial statements
The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Directors’ Report and the Group financial statements in accordance with applicable
Unuted Kingdom law and those Internaticnal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the Ewopean Union

Under company law the Directors must not approve the Group financial statements unless they are satstied that they present farrly the
financtal position of the Group and the financial performance and cash flows of the Group for that period In prepanng these financial
statements, the Directors are required to

]

»

¥

»

select suitable accounting policies tn accordance with IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes 1n Accounting Estimates and Frrors and
then apply them consistently,

present information, 1ncluding accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable
information,

provide additional disclosures when comphance with the specific reqqiarements in IFRSs is insufficent to enable users to understand
the 1mpact of parncular transactions other events and conditions on the Group's financial position and financial performance,

state that the Group has complied with IFRSs, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements,
and

make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group's transactions
and disclose with reasenahle accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and enable them to ensure that the financal
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence for
takmg reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irreguianties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and finanaal information included on the Company’s
website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparaticen and dissemination of financial statements may chffer from
legislation 1in other junisdictions
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Independent auditors’ report
to the members of Nautical Petroleum plc

We have audited the Group financial statements of Nauttcal Petroleum plc for the year ended 30 June 2010 which compnse the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, the Consolidated Statement of
Changes 1n Equity and the Consolitdated Cash Flow Statement and the related notes 1 t0 29 The financial reporting {ramework that has
been applied in thelr preparation 1s applicable law and Intemational Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the

European Union

This report 15 made solely to the Company's members, as a body, 1n accordance with chapter 13 of part 16 of the Companies Act 2006
Qur audit work has heen undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are required to state to themn
an auditors’ report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit wark, for this 1eport, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Diectors Responsibibities Statement set out on page 28 the Directors are responsible for the preparation of
the Group financial statements and for being satisfied that they qive a true and fair view Our responsiblity 1s to audit the Group financtal
statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practice Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud orerror This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting polictes are appropriate to the group's circumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of sigmficant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the
financial statements

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinton the group financial statements

v give a true and fair view of the state of the group's affairs as at 30 June 2010 and of 1ts loss for the year then ended,
» have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and

» have been prepared 1n accordance with the requurements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opimon the information given 1n the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the group financial statements are prepared 1s
consistent with the group financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matiters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you 1if,
1N OUI OpinIon

» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

» we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Other matter
We have reported separately on the parent company ﬂngnczal statements of Nautical Petroleum plc for the year snded 30 June 2010

Kevin Weston (Sentor statutory auditor) 2k« Yaa g u.f
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor

Aberdeen

8 October 2010
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 30 June 2010

2010 2009
Notes £'000 £ 000
Revenue 3 68 25
Cost of sales (84) (28)
Impairment & operating costs of extended well test eqaupment - (2,472)
Gross loss (16) (2,475)
Exploration & evaluation gain on farmout - 491
Exploration & evaluation expense 4 (663) (4,526)
Administrative expenses {1,602) (1.677)
Foreign exchange {loss)/gain (132) 486
Operating loss 4 {2,413) (7.601)
Finance income 9 309 1,314
Finance costs 3 (371} (349)
Loss before tax (2,475) (6.636)
Tax 1017 194 749
Loss and total comprehensive income for the year (2,281) {5,887)
Attributahle to
Ecquty holders of the Company (2,281) {5,887)
Basic and diluted loss per share {pence} 11 (3 60) (9 28)

The results above were entirely derived from continuing cperations
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Consolidated statement of financial position

Asat 30 June 2010
At At
30 Junie 30 June
2010 2009
Notes £'000 £000
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 12 65,258 48,857
Property, plant and equipment 12 353 277
Long-term deposits 13 - 1,000
55,611 50,134
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 14 808 573
Short-term deposits 15 3,000 16,000
Cash and cash equivalents 15 8,730 3,061
12,538 19,634
Total asgets 68,149 69,768
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 {883) (809)
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax 17 (5,488) {5,682)
Provisions 18 (4,103) {3.466)
(9,591) {9,148)
‘Total liabilities {10,474) {9,957
Net assets 57,675 53,811
Equity attributable to equity holders
Called up share capital 21 11,588 11,688
Share premium 37,748 37,748
Other reserves 22 29,169 29,169
Cumulative translation reserve {1,659) (1,659
Accumulated losses {19,171) {17,035}
Total equity §7.675 59811

The financial statements were approved by the Board on 8 October 2010 and were signed on 1ts behalf by

S Jenking W Mathers
Chief Executive Finance Director
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 30 June 2010

Cumulative

Share Share Other tanslatien Retamned Total

capital premum 1gserves reserve eamnings equity

£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £000 £000 £'000

At 1 July 2008 11,688 37,748 29,169 (1,659) (11,391) 65,455
Loss for the year - - - - (6,887) (5.887)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - (5,887} (6,887
Share-based payments - - - - 243 243
At 30 June 2009 11,588 37,748 29,169 (1,669) (17,035) 59,811
Loss for the year - - - - (2.281) (2.281)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - (2,281) (2,281)
Share-based payments - - - - 145 145
At 30 June 2010 11,688 37,748 29,1689 (1,659) (19,171) 57,675




Annual repart and accounts 2010

Nautical Petioleum ple

Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 30 June 2010

2010

33

2009

Notes £'000 £'000
Net cash outflow from operating activities 2 (1,720) (367)
Cash flows from investing activities
Flnance income 209 840
Expenditure on development and production assets (93) (285)
Expenditure on mtangible assets (6,624) ({11,519}
Decrease/(increase) in cash placed on short-term deposit 15 13,000 {1,000)
Decrease/(increase) 1n cash placed on long-term deposit 13 1,000 {1,000)
Proceeds from asset disposals - 11,938
Net cash flow from investing activities 7,492 {1,026)
Cash flows from financing activities
Finance expense {103) (156)
Repayment of balances due to 1elated undertalkings - (508)
Net cash flow from financing activities {103) {664)
Increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 5,669 (2,057
Cash and cash equuvalents at beginning of year 3,061 5,118
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 15 8,730 3,061
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Authornsation of inancial statements and statement of comphance with IFRS

The Group's financial statements of Nautical Petreleum plc for the year ended 30 June 2010 were authonsed for 1ssue by the Board of
Directors on 8 October 2010 and the statement of financial position was signed on the Board's behalf by Stephen Jenking and Wilham
Mathers Nautical Petroleum plc 1s a public hmited company incorporated and domuciled in England and Wales The Company's ordinary
shares are traded on AIM on the London Stock Exchange

2. Accounting policies for the consolidated Anancial statements

(2 1) Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of I[FRSs (International Financial
Reporting Standards) as adopted by the European Union (EU) as they apply to the consclidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 30 June 2010, and apphed 1n accordance with the provisions of the Compames Act 2006 The Group's financial statements ate
presented 1n sterling and all values rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (E000) except where otherwise incdicated

The Board has reviewed the accounting policies set out below and considers them to be appropnaie to the Group’s business activities

(2 2) Basis of consohdation

These consolidated financial statements of the Group comprise the financial statements of Nautical Petreleum ple (“Nautical”) and its
subsidiaries as at 30 June 2010, including the results of the subsidianes, which are prepared for the same reporting year as the Parent
Company using consistent accounting policies

All intercompany balances, transactions, Income and expenses and profits and losses resulting from ntra-group transactions are
eliminated in full Subsidianes are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases Control 1s normally evident when Nautical, or a company which 1t
controls, owns more than 50% of the voting nghts of a company's share capital

Minonty interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets not held by the Group and are presented separately 1n the
consohdated statement of comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated statement of financial position, separately from
pareni shareholders equity

Where a minonty interest 15 acquured, the difference between the cost of the additional interest 1 the subsidiary and the minonty
1nterest’s share of the assets and habilities reflected 1n the consohdated statement of financial position at the date of the acquisition of
the minority interest 1s reflected as being a transaction between owners and the difference 15 therefore taken to equaty

(2 3) Significant accounting judgements and estimates

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management make judgements and estimates The key assumptions

concerning the future, and other sources of estumation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a sigruficant nisk of causing a

matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and hahilities 1n the financial year are as follows

»  The Group makes judgements whether the exploration and evaliation assets are impaired 1n accordance with policy 2 6

» The estimates determining the unwinding of the discount on long-term conditional payments, being the expected timings of field
development approval and first ol on the Manner field

» The inputs into the binommal mode] used to estimate the fair value and charge to income of share options granted

(2 4) Revenue recognition
Revenue 15 recognised to the extent that 1t 1s probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenues can be
reliably measured

(2 5) Forexgn currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in UK sterling, which 1s the Company's functional and presentation currency Each
entity 1n the Group determines its own functional currency and 1tems included in the financial statements of each entty are measured
using that functional currency As at 30 June 2010 all entittes within the Group had a UX sterling functional currency Transactions 1n
foreign currencies are imtially recorded 1n the functional currency using the rate ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary assets
and habilittes denominated 1n foreign currencies are re-translated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet
date All differences are taken to the income statement

(2 6) Intangble assets — exploration and evaluation assets

Caprtalisation

Certain costs (other than payments to acquize the legal nght to explore) incurred prior to acquinng the nghts to explore are charged
durectly to the Income statement All costs incurred after the nghts to explore an area have been obtained, such as geological and
geophysical costs and other direct cests of exploration {dnihng, trenching, samplng and techmical feasihility and commercial viability
activities) and appraisal are accumulated and capitalised as intangnble exploration and evaluation (“E&E") assets

E&E costs are not amortised pnor to the conclusion of appraisal activities At completion of appraisal activities, if technical feasihility 1s
demonstrated and commercial reserves are discovered, then, following development sanction, the carrying value of the relevant E&E
asset will be reclassified as a development and production asset, but only after the carrying value of the relevant E&E asset has been
assessed for impawrment, and whete appropriate, 1ts carrying value adjusted If, after completion of appraisal activities in an area, it 1s not
possible to determine technical feasihility and commercial viability or if the legal nght to explore expires or if the Company decdes not
to continue exploration and evaluation activity, then the costs of such unsuccessful explozation and evaluation 1s wntten off to the
ncome statement 1n the penod the relevant events occur
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Impairment

1f and when facts and circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an E&E asset may exceed 11s tecoverable amount an impairment
review 1s performed For E&E assets when there are such indications, an impairment test 1s carned out by grouping the E&E assets with
the development and production assets helonging to the same geographical segment to form the Cash-Generating Unit (*CGU') for
impatrment testung The equivalent combined carrying value of the CGU 15 compared against the CGU's recoverable amount and any
resulting mmpairment loss 1s written off to the income statement The recoverable amount of the CGU 1s determuned as the higher of 1ts
fair value less costs to sell and 1ts value 1n use

Acquisttions and Disposals

Farm-1n and farm-out transactions of E&E assets are accounted for at cost Costs are capitalised according to the Group's interest, net of
premium recelved or paid, as costs are incurred Proceeds from the disposal of an E&E asset, or part of an E&E asset, are deducted from
the capitalised costs and the difference recognised 1n the income statement as a gain or loss

(2 7) Property, Plamt and Equipment — Development and production assets

Capntalisation

Development and Production {D&P) assets are accumulated into single field cost centres and represent the cost of developing the
comumercial reserves and bringing them 1nto production together with the E&E expenditures incurred in inding commercial reserves
previously transferred from E&E assets as cuthned 1n the policy above

Depletion

Costs 1elating to each single field cost centre are depleted on a unut of production method based on the commercial proven and probable
reserves for that cost centre Development assets are not depreciated until production commences The amortisation caleulation takes
account of the estimated future costs of development of recognised proven and probable 1eserves, based on current price levels Changes
In reserve quantities and cost estimates are recogmsed prospectively from the last reporting date

Impairment

A review 1s performed for any indication that the value of the Group's D&P assets may be impaired For D&P assets when there are such
indications, an impairment test 15 cartied out on the cash-generating unit Each cash-generating umtis identified 1n accordance with
IAS 36 Nautrcal's cash-generating units are those assets which generate largely independent cash flows and are normally, but not
always, single development or productton areas If necessary, additional depletion 1s charged thiough the income statement if the
capitalised costs of the cash-generating unit exceed the associated estimated future discounted cash flows of the related commercial oil
and gas reserves

(2 8) Jownt ventures

The Group 15 engaged n oll and gas exploration, development and production through unincorporated jont ventures The Group
accours for 1ts share of the results and net assets of these joint ventures as jointly controlled assets Where Nautical acts as operator 10
the joint venture, the gross habilities, cash and receivables {including amounts due to or from non-operating partners} of the joint venture
are included 1n the Group balance sheet

(2 9) Provisions

Prowvision for Decommissioning

Prowision for decommussioning 1s recogmsed in full as an asset and lrability when the obhigation anses The asset 18 included within
development and productions assets The llability 18 included within provisions The amount recognised s the estimated cost of
decomrnisstomng, discounted where appropnate to its net present value, and 1s reassessed each year in accordance with local conditions
and requirements Revisions to estimated costs of commissioning which alter the level of provisions required are also reflected 1n
adjustments to decommissioning asset

Conditzonal payments

Non-current conditional payments are measured at amortised cost using the effective 1nterest rate method, with the unwinding of the
discount passing though income statement as a finance cost At each balance sheet the estimates used to determine the discount
pertod are assessed and changes made as appropnate, with the effect of the change being recorded 1n the current year

(2 10) Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash-in-hand and deposits held with banks with onginal matuntes of 3 months ar less

Short-term deposits
Short-term deposits comprise deposits held with onginal maturties of between 3 and 12 months at the balance sheet date

Long-term deposits
Long-term deposits compnse deposits held with banks with onginal matunties of more than 12 months at the balance sheet date

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other 1ecelvables are inttially recogmsed at fair value Fair value 1s considered to be the onginal 1nvoice amount, discounted
where matenal Appropnate allowances for estiimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised 1n the Income Statement ¥f there 15 objective
evidence that the recevable 15 1mpaired

Under IAS 39 all financial assets are classified as "loans and borrowings”
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2 Accounting policies for the consolidated financial statements continued

(2 11) Financial habihties

Trade and other payables

Current trade and other payables are wnitially recogrised at fair value Fair value 15 considered to be the onginal invoice amount,
discounted where material

All inancial lrabilities as defined under IAS 39 are held at amortised cost

{2 12) Taxation

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxatton authorities, based on
tax rates and laws that are enacted or substanuvely enacted by the balance shees date

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax 1s recogmsed on all temporary differences ansing between the tax bases of assets and hahilities and their carrying

amounts 1n the financial statements with the following exceptions

» where the temporary difference anses from the mnitial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liabilityin a transaction thatis not a
business combination that at the tume of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss,

» 1nrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investment 1n subsidianes, assoclates and joint ventures, where the
uming of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and 1t 15 probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
1n the foreseeable future, and

» deferred incormne assets are recognised only to the extent that it 15 probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible termnporary differences, carmed forward tax credits or tax losses can be utihsed

Deferred income tax assets and Labilines are measured on an undiscounted basss at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the
related asset 1s realised or lrabihity is settled, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

The carrying amoun: of deferred income tax assets 1s reviewexd at each balance sheet date Deferred income tax assets and habihities are
offset, only if a legally enforcement nght exists to set off current tax assets against current tax habilities, the deferred 1ncome taxes relate
1o the same taxation authority and that authonty permits the Group to make a single net payment

Income tax 15 charged or credited directly to equity 1f it relates to 1ems that are credited or charged to equity Otherwise income tax 1s
recognised 1n the income statement

(2 13) Employee benefits
The Group operates a defined contnibution pension scheme Contnibutions payabile for the year are charged to the income statemant

(2 14) Share-based payments

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase 1n equuty, over the year in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant individuals become fully entitled to the
award {"vesting pownt”} The cumulative expense recogmsed for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date
reflects the extent to whaich the vesting pencd has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments and value
that wall ultimately vest The income statement charge for the year represents the movement in cumulative expense recogrnused as at the
begimnning and end of that year

The fair value of share-based remuneration 1s determined at the date of grant and recognised as an expense in the income statement on a
straight-hne basis over the vesting period, takang account of the estimated number of shares that will vest

The fair value 15 determined by use of a binormal model

{2 15) Separately disclosable items

Items that are both matenal in size and unusual and infrequent 1n nature are presented as separately disclosable 1tems 1n the tncome
statement or separately disclosed 1n the notes to the financial statements The Directors are of the opinion that the separate disclosure of
these items provides helpful information about the Group's underlying business performance

(2 16) Commitments and contingencies

Commitments and contingent habilities are not recogmsed in the financial statements They are disclesed unless the possibility of an
outflow of resources embodying econormic benefits 1s remote A contingent asset 1s not recogmised 1n the financiat staterments but
disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits 15 probable

{2 17) Changes 1n accounting policy

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except as descnbed below The following new
and amended IFRS and IFRIC Interpretattons are mandatory for periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 unless otherwise stated For
each of the new or amended IFRS and IFRIC iterpretations adopted in the pertod the 1mpact on the financial statements or performance
of the Group1s described below

Amendment to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment Vesting Conditions and Cancellations
The amendment to IFRS 2 clanfies the defimtion of vestng conditions and prescribes the treatment for an award that1s cancelled This
amendment did not have an 1mpact on the financial posiion or performance of the Group
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Amendment to IFRS 7 Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments

This standard requires enhanced disclosure relating to the fair value measurements and hquidity nisk of inancial instruments The
adopuon of the revised standard has not had any impact on the Group's r1eporied income or net assets and the requured disclosure 1s
detailed throughout the financial statements and more specifically 1n nota 20

IFRS 8 Operating Segments

IFRS 8 replaces 1AS 14 Segment reporting (IAS 14) The Group concluded that its operating segments determuned 1n accordance with
IFRS 8 are the same as the business segments previously identufied under IAS 14 IFRS 8 disclosures are shown 1n note 3, including the
related comparative information

IAS 1 (Revised) Presentaticn of Financial Statements

The revised standard has required the reconciliation of movements 1n equity, previously disclosed 1n the notes, to be presented as a
pnimary statement entitled “Consclidated Statement of Changes in Equity” In addition the Consolidated Statement of Recognised
Income and Expense has been replaced with the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Incorne The revised standard requures this
statement to present all items of recogmsed 1ncome and expense, either 1n one single statement, or 1n two linked statements The Group
has elected to present one statement

Improvements to IFRS3 (1ssued May 2008 and April 2009)

In May 2008 the TASB issued its first ommbus of amendments to 1ts standards primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and
clanfying wording There are separate transitional provisions for each amendment The adoptiion of amendments did not have any impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group

The following standards, amendments and mterpretations to published standards are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2009 but they are not relevant to the company's operations

IFRS 3 Business Combinations

1AS 23 Barrowing Costs

1AS 27 Amendment Consohidated and Separate Financial Statements

1AS 32 and IAS 1 Amendments Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Anising on Liquidation
1AS 39 Amendment Ehgible Hedged Items

IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment 1n a Foreign Operation

IFRIC 17 Distnibution of Non-cash Assets to Owners

IFRIC 18 Transfer of Assets from customers

{2 18) New standards and interpretations not applied
The IASB and IFRIC have i1ssued the following standards and interpretations with an effective date after the commencement date of
these financial statements

New standards and interpretations not applied

Intematicnal Accountng Standards {IAS/IFRS) Effective date
IFRS 1 Amendments to IFRS? - Additional Exemptions for Fust-Time Adopters 1 January 2010
IFRS 1 Amendments to IFRS1 - Limited Exemption from comparatives IFRS 7 disclosures 1 July 2010
IFRS 2 Amendments to IFRS 2 - Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions 1 January 2010
[FRS 9 Financial Instruments Classification & Measurement 1 January 2013
[AS 24 Related Party Disclosures (revised) 1 January 2011
IAS 32 Amendments to [AS 32 Classification of Rights Issues 1 February 2010
International Financial Reporiing Interpretations Commuttes ([FRIC)

IFRIC 14 Amendments Prepayments of a Mimimum Funding Requirement 1 January 2011
IFRIC 19 Extingwmshing Financial Liabihities wath Equnty Instruments 1 July 2010

The Directors do not anticipate that the adoption of these standards and interpretations will have a material impact on the Group's
financial statements

3. Tumover and segmental information
Revenue disclosed 1n the income statement 1s analysed as follows

2010 2008

£'000 £ 000

Ol sales 63 25
Revenue 63 25
Finance income 309 1,314
Total revenue 377 1,339

For the purposes of segmental information the reportable operating segment 1s determaned to be the business segment ‘The Group has
only one class of business segment, the exploration for and production of hydrocarbon hguds, which s monitored by management
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3 Turnover and segmental information continued

Geographical information

The: Croup's geographical segments are the United Kingdom and Europe The following tables present certain asset information
regarding the Group's geographical segments

2010 2009
Revenue from external cusiomers £'000 £ 000
United Kingdom 68 25

2010 2009
Non current assets £'000 £ 000
United Kingdom 54,617 49,208
Europe 994 926

55,611 50,134

Non-current assets for this purpose consist of intangible assets and property, plan: and equipment

Information about major customers
Revenue from oil sales 1s generated from only one customer

4 Operating loss

2010 2009
Operating loss 1z stated after charging £°000 £000
Exploration and evaluation gamn* - (491)
Exploration and evaluation expense
— Exploration costs written off (see note 12) 232 4,057
- Pre licence expenditure 431 469
Impairment of extended well test equipment - 2,376
Deprectation and depletion of property, plant and equipment 17 78
Forelgn exchange losses on conditional payments 369 660
Other foreign exchange gains {237} (1,146}
* Gains from farmout of 8/25a Selkie well
5 Auditors’ remuneration
2010 2009
£000 £000
Audit of the Group accounts 60 52
Audit of the Company's accounts 7 8
67 58
Other fees 10 auditors
Audit of the Company's subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 17 15
Other services pursuant to legislation 27 29
Taxation services 60 49
104 93

6. Information regarding Directors' emoluments

Aggregate Directors’ emotuments, which exclude pensions, are £725K (2009 £753K) The emoluments of the highest paid Director
were £279K (2009 £331K) In addinon he received contnbutions $o a defined contribution pension scheme of £21K (2002 £13K)
Further information ts inclided 1n the Remuneration report

7 Employees
Headcount

2010 2009
Number Number

Average number of employees of the Group (including Executive Directors) during the year was
Management 3 3
Techmeal staff/support/other 3 p
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Staff costs
2010 2009
£000 £ 000
Wage and salanes 654 575
Bonuses 168 255
Soclal secunty costs 103 92
QOther pension costs 70 A
995 956
Equity settled share-based payments 145 243

1,140 1,199

8 Pension commitments
For duect employees of Nautical Petroleum plc, the Company contributes 10% of salary to a defined contnbution pension scheme and up
to 2 5% to match employee contnbutions £70K has been charged to the income statement for the year 2009 £34K)

9 Interest and similar items

2010 2002
Finance mncome £'000 £ 000
Bank imterest 309 775
Other financial income - 426
Gain on seitlement of amounts due to related undertakings - 113
309 1,314
2010 2009
Finance costs £'000 £ 000
Costs of borrowing facility 103 161
Othert financial costs 77 -
Unwinding of discounts on long-term payables 191 188
n 349
10. Tax on loss on ordinary activities
The major components of the tax credit are
2010 2009
Deferred income tax £'000 £ 000
Relating to ongination and reversal of temporary differences 1,570 1,151
Benefit of previously unrecognised tax losses (1,764) (1,900}
(194) (749)

A reconciiiation between the tax credit and the product of the accounting profit multiplied by the standard income tax rate 15 as follows

2010 2009
£'000 £000
Loss before tax (2,475) (6,636)
Loss before tax at the standard UK corporation tax of 28% (2009 28%) {693) (1,858)
Effects of
Expenses and (income} not deductible for tax purposes {49) (179
Prior year adjustment — deferred tax 66 -
Deferred tax assets not recognised 568 3,008
Unhsation of deferred tax assets not recognised - (1,900}
Effect of supplementary charge (86) 180
Total tax credit on loss on ordinary activities {194) {749)
11 Loss per share
2010 2009
Loss for the year attnbutable to equuty holders (£°000) (2,281) (5,887
Basic werghted average number of shares i 1ssue 1n the year {thousands) 63,408 63,408
Basic and diluted loss per ordinary share (pence)} {3.60) (928)

In addition at 30 June 2010 there were a total ¢f 3 03m options (2009 3 48m) and Nil warrants (2009 1 32m) 1n1ssue, which have not been
included 1 the above calculations Due to a loss made from continuing operations durnng the year potential ordinary shares resulting
from the exercise of share options and warrants are not dilutive On 31 August 2010 the Company 1ssued a further 24,280,000 shares
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12. Intangible assets; property, plant and equipment
Movements durnng the year were as follows

Property

Intang:ible Property plant and
assets plantand equipment
Exploraticn  equipment Development

and  Exiended and
evaluation welltest  production

assets equipmernt assets Other Total
Cost £ 000 £'000 £ 000 £000 £'000
At 30 June 2008 56,400 2,796 - 7 59,203
Additions 7.961 - 285 - 8,246
Disposals (11,447 (2,796) - (N {14,250}
Wntten off (4,057) - - - 4.057
At 30 June 2009 48,857 - 285 - 49,142
Additions 6,633 - 93 - 6,726
Disposals - - - - -
Wntten off {232 - - - (232)
At 30 June 2010 556,258 - 378 - 55,636
Depletion and deprectation
At 30 June 2008 - 350 - 7 357
Prowvided 1n year - 70 8 - 78
Impairment - 2,376 - - 2376
Disposals - (2,796) - (7} (2,803
At 30 June 2009 - - 8 - 8
Provided 1n year - - 17 - 17
At 30 June 2010 - - 25 - 25
Net book value
At 30 June 2010 55,258 - 353 - 55,611
At 30 June 2009 48,857 - 277 - 49,134

The exploration and evaluation balance represents the costs related to the flelds currently being evaluated and appraised, including
£31 1m for the Marner field (2009 £28 1m) and £20 3m for the Kraken fleld (2009 £19 4m) Amounts written off in the prior year relate to
unsuccessful exploration costs primarily due to licences being relinquished or 1n the process of being rekinquished, principally the
3/27a Hydra and 9/1 Scytla licences

The above balances include amounts relating to a 6 67% 1nterest 1n the Mariner Field, being carned by the Company Upon field
development approval, the party to the carry agreement has the option to earn back its 6 67% interest by rermbursement of costs durng
the development phase These costs amount to approximately £10 2m as at June 2010 {2009 £9 5m} Ifthe party declines to take up 1its
option, the Company retains the 6 67% interest upon payment of £1

13 Long-term deposits

30 June 30 June
2010 2009
£'000 £ 000

- 1,000

Long-term deposits represent a fixed deposit with Abbey National of £1 0m earning interest at 3 2% which matured on 2 July 2010
14. Trade and other receivables

30 Juns 30 June

2010 2009

£000 £000

Other debtors 474 494
Prepayments and accrued interest 33 79
808 573

None of the above are impaired
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30 June 30 June

2010 2009

£'000 £000

Cash at bank and 1n hand 626 1,286
Deposits of 3 months or less 8,105 1,775
8,730 3,061

Short-term deposits 3,000 16,000

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates Deposits of 3 months or less earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates Short-term
deposits are made for varying onginal penods of greater than 3 months and less than 12 months depending on the immediate cash

requirements of the Group, and earn mterest at the respective short-term deposit rates

16 Trade and other payables

30 June 30 June
2010 2009
Current habiities £'000 £'000
Trade creditors 312 504
Amounts owed to related compantes 56 13
Accruals 515 292
883 809

17 Deferred taxation
30 Juns 30 June
2010 2009
Batance sheet movernents deferred tax asget £'000 £000
Tax losses 5,682 3,918
30 June 30 June
2010 2009
Balance sheet movements deferred tax hability £°000 £000
Accelerated capital allowances 5,898 4,328
Acquisition fair value adjustments 5,272 5,272
11,170 9,600
Net Deferred tax ltabibty 5,488 5,682
30 June 30 June
2010 2009
Income statement movements £000 £ 000
Accelerated capital allowances 1,570 4,328
Acquisttion fair value adjustments - {1,159)
Tax losses (1,764) {3,818)
(194) {749

The acquusition fair value adjustment relates to Nautical Holdings Limited's acquisition 1n 2004 of Nautical Petroleum AG

In addiien to the above balances for tax losses and accelerated capital allowances, which were recognised at a tax rate of 50%, the group
has a deferred tax asset not yet recogrused at a tax rate of 28% of £4 3m (2009 £3 5my), whach has not been recognised as a result of extsting
uncertamnties of their reahisation These anse from tax losses of £6 6m (2009 £3 4m), depreciation 1n excess of capital allowances of £6 5m
(2009 £6 3m) and deferred consideration of £3 3m (2009 £2 8m) The tax losses are available indefinitsly agamst future taxable profits

18. Provisions

Provigion for

conditional
Dacommissioning payments Total
£000 £000 £ 000
At 1 July 2009 20 3,445 3,466
Exchange adjustments - 369 369
Effect of changes 1n estimates - 77 7
Unwinding of discournt - 191 19
At 30 June 2010 20 4,083 4,103

The £20K provision for decommussioning costs relate to the Keddington field
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18 Provisions continued

Condinonal payments comprise 2 amounts relating to the Manner Field of (1) $4 Om due on Field Development Plan (FDP) approval by
the Department of Energy and Climate Change (DECC) which 1s anticipated 1n 2011, and {2) $2 8m due on first o1l which 1s anticipated m
2014 The Campany believes these events to be sufficiently probable as to provide for their payment The halnlities were acquired as part
of the acquusition of the Alba Resources {Holdings) Group in August 2005 The movement 1 the year includes both exchange movemenis
and unwinding of the discount, which are shown in the statement of comprehensive income The change 1n estimates appliesto a
revision of the estimated trigger dates

19 Borrowing facility

On 2 November 2007, the Group entered 1nto an 18 month £7 5m borrowing faciity with the Bank of Scotland for general working capital
purposes On 30 March 2009 this facility was extended to 31 May 2012 with any amounts drawn repayahle in full by that date No amounts
had been drawn at the balance sheet date The facility 1s secured by a first ranking debenture over the assets of the Company and the
assets of certain subsidianes, principally Alba Resources Limited which has a 26 67% interest in the Manner fleld Interest 1s chargeable
at 3 o1 6 months LIBOR, as chosen by the Company, plus 2 maigin of 2 75%

20 Financial instruments

30 June 30 June
2010 2009
Book valus  Book value
£°000 £000
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 8,730 3,061
Short-term deposits 3,000 16,000
Long-term deposits - 1,000
Other debtaors (note 14) 474 494

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables - current 883 809
Conditional payments 4,083 3,446

Thete 15 no material difference between the carrying value and fair value of the financial instruments

Market nisk

As an upstream o1l and gas entity, the Company 1s subject to many nsks arising in the normal course of the Group's business

The principal business nsks are outlined in more detail in the Directors Report on page 23 of this report The Group 1s exposed to
macroeconomic risks mcluding, but not hmted to, the strength of capital markets, the o1l pnee and the nisk of co-venturer or suppher
default, al! of which could adversely affect the ablity of the Company to finance and execute its planned work programmes

The Company has a diversified portfolio of assets which remain unhedged with respect to commeodity price interest rates and currency
fluctuattons Specific financial instruments nsks associated with the Group’s financial assets and financial habilines are therefore
unlikely to have the quantum of impact that broader macro nsks, such as those cutlined above, could pose

The Board reviews and establishes appropniate pohicies for the management of nsks and monitors them on a regular basis

{1) Financial assets and hiabitias — Commodity price risk
The Group has only a small amount of revenue, so 15 not exposed to any material commodity price nsk on 1ts financial instruments

{2) Finanecial assets and habilities — Foreign currency nsk

The Group has transactional currency expesure whereby expenditure 15 incurred in currencies which are not the functional currency of
the relevant Group company (UK sterhing) The primary exposure 1s 1o the US dollar The Group moniors exchange rate movermnents and
considers forward purchase of US dollars pnior to major capital programmes requinng dollars

The non current cenditicnal payments are hahilities which are tnggered on future events as set out 1n note 18, which are in US Dollars

The impact of a 10% change in the UK Sterhing/USD exchange rate would have been a +/-£177K (2009 +/~-£344K) effect on the profit
before tax

{3) Financial assets and liabiities - interest rate risk
The Group has not drawn on 1ts bank facility If it were to do so, 1t would be exposed to interest movements, as the rate 15 linked to LIBOR
1ates as described 1n note 19

There is an insignificant risk of change 1n the value of cash and deposits as a result of interest rate movements
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{4) Financral assets and habilities — Credit nsk
Credit nsk 1s pnmanly that a partner fails to pay amounts due causing financial loss to the Group The Group currently has mited
exposure to such credit nsk Maximum exposure would be the amounts shown in the balance sheet

The Group is exposed to credit nsk on the financial instututions with which 1t holds cash, short-term deposits and deposits maturing 1n
greater than cne year At June 2010 the Company had £5 0 mmilion cash and deposits with Abbey National (part of the Santander group),
£3 7m with Scottish Widows and £2 0 million with Anglo Insh Bank, with substantially all of the remaiming £1 Om with Bank of Scotland

(5) Financial assets and habilities — Licnudity nsk

Liquidity sk 1s the nisk that sources of funding for the Group’s business activities are not availlable Liqudity management 15 a core
activity and 1s regularly reviewed by the board, 1n conjunction with the Group's cash forecast information The board always ensures that
there 15 sufficient funding available to before commutting to any significant expenditure

As the Group's primary focus 1s on exploraticn and appraisal, to date the Group's funding needs have been met through a combinatton of
equuy and portfoho management The Group has successfully raised equity and engaged in farmout acuvity to fund work programmes
on a number of occasions In additton 1 these activities a credit facility has been arranged with Bank of Scotland (Lloyds Banking Group)
1in order to provide added flexibility (see note 19)

The maturity profile of the Group’s non current financial habihties 1s dependent upon certain events as explained in note 18 The current
habihties fall due withun 1 year The Group's payment policy 15 to settle amounts in accordance with agreed terms which 1s typically
30 days

(6) Financial assets and habilities — capital management

The group defines capital as the total equity of the Group The ohjective of the Group's capital management 15 to ensure that It makes
maxunum use of 1ts capital to support :ts business operations and maxirmse shareholder value There are no constraints on the Group's
capital

As the Group begins to davelop its fields, debt funding, such as reserve based lending, will become more significant and 1ts availability
will be key to the successful transition of projects from the appraisal to the development phase As outhined above the Group 1s exposed
to macreecenomic nsks including, but not hmited to, the strength of capital markets, the ol price and the risk of co-venturer or supplier
default, all of which could adversely affect the availability of future debt and equity funding

21 Share capital

At 30 June 2010 At 30 June 2009
Number £'000 Number £ 000
Authorised
Orcinary shares of 20p each 100,000,000 20,000 100,000,000 20,000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Crdinary shares of 20p each 3,875,000 100 3,875,000 100
Reverse acquesition capital adjustment 34,875,000 6,556 34,875,000 6,556
Ordinary shares of 20p each 24,658,291 4,932 24,658,291 4,932
63,408,291 11,588 63,408,291 11,588

On 31 August 2010 the Company completed a placing of 24,280,000 20p new ordinary shares, at a price per share of 126 pence The
placing raised £30 35m (£28 8m net of expenses) Following the admssion of the shares there are 87,688,291 shares in 1ssue

The Group announced on 24 November 2005 the acquisition of 22% of the St Laurent Permit onshore France field with the consideration
to be satisfled by the 1ssuance of 19,388 new ordinary shares of 20p each The seller has not yet requested the 1ssue of these shares

0On 4 July 2005 the Group announced the 1ssuance of 583,334 warrants to subscnbe for new ordinary shares at 400p per share exercisable
up to 3 July 2009 The Company has the nght to require warrant holders to exercise their warrants should the closing price of the
Company's ordinary shares remain above 800p per share for 90 consecutive trading days in the year to 3 July 2009 These warrants
expued on 3 July 2009 without being exercised

On 3 January 2006 the Group announced the 1ssuance of 731,890 warrants to subscrnibe for new ordinary shares at 400p per share
exercisable up to 3 January 2010 The Company has the nght to require warrant holders to exercise their warrants should the closing
price of the Company's ordinary shares remain above 800p per share for 90 consecutive trading days in the year to 3 January 2010 These
warrants expired on 3 January 2010 without being exercised
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21 Share capital continued
Equity settled shara options
At the balance sheet date and at the date of this report, the following share options are outstanding

Exercisable Exetcisable Exercisable

Held by at at at
Date Exercisable Exerctse Total current 30 June 30 June 1 October
Issued by price 18sued Directors 2010 2009 2010
7 March 2005 7 March 2013 8000p 600,000 600,000 600,000 600,000 500,000
23 September 2005 23 September 2010 250 75p 50,000 - 50,000 50,000 50,000
26 September 2005 26 September 2013 22000p 675,000 650,000 675000 675000 675,000
18 January 2007 18 January 2015  17700p 287,500 250,000 287,500 287500 287500
18 January 2008 18 January 2016  21100p 322,500 300,000 322500 161,250 322,500
156 April 2008 15Apnl 2016  18500p 15,000 - 15,000 7,500 15,000
13 November 2008 13 November 2016 3617p 100,000 100,000 75,000 25,000 75,000
12 January 2009 12 January 2017 2675p 395000 325,000 197500 - 296,250
24 June 2009 24 June 2017 57 10p 30,000 30,000 15,000 - 15,000
13 January 2010 13 January 2018 5750p 650,000 430,000 - - 137,500
Balance at 30 June 2010 3,025,000 2,685,000 2,237,500 1,806,250 2,473,760
Balance at 8 October 2010 3,025,000 2,685,000 2,237,500 1,806,260 2,473,750

The options were all granted under the Nautical share option scheme rules {with the exception of the 50,000 options granted on 23
September 2005 1n association with the acquisition of the Alba Resources (Holdings) Group), whereby from the date of 1ssue 25% are
exercisable after 6 months, 25% after 12 months, 25% after 18 months and 25% after 24 months The options must be exercised within 8
years of 1ssue The exercise price 1s the highest of exther the nomunal value of the shares {20p), the average pnice for the 30 days
preceding grant date or the price on grant date None of the Directors exercised options during the year 1 Wilhams and H Thanawala
resigned on 17 October 2008 and therefore had until 17 October 2009 to exercise any exercisable options None were exercised

The weighted average share price in the year was 66 7p {2009 55 7p) The weighted average remaimng contractual life at 30 June 2010
was 4 82 years (2009 4 90 years) The weighted average fair value of options granted 1n the year was 26 74p (2009 13 96p) The expense
recognised for share-based payments i the year to 30 June 2010 was £145K (2009 £243K)

The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise price (WAEP) of, and movements 1n, share options during
the year

2010 2010 2009 2009

Number WAREP Number WAEP

Quistanding at beginning of year 3,475,000 1451 2,950,000 1656
Lapsed 1n the year (1,000,000) {157 5) - -
Granted duning the year 550,000 575 525,000 303
At 30 June 3,026,000 125.05 3,475,000 1451

At 30 June 2010, 2 24m options are exercisable (2009 2 74m)

The fair value of the share options granted s estimated using a binomial medel The following table lists the 1nputs and assumptions
used 1n the model

13 January 24June 12 January 13 November

2010 2009 2009 2008
Dividend yield - - - -
Expected share price volatility 69 0% 737% 73 7% 67 4%
Risk free interest rate 461% 345% 300% 3 00%
Leaver rate 0% 5% 5% 5%

Volaulity has been based on a weighted average of Nautical’s and its peer group's share prices, the composition of which was revised
durnng the year following corporate activity in the sector and to maintain the approprniateness of the comparable group of compames
Risk free interest rates reflect the interest rate at the tme of 1ssue which could be obtained on government secunties of similar matunty
to the options being 1ssued The leaver rate was adjusted to 0% due to the small number of people 1n the scheme Adjustments to the
expense recognsed will be made if anyone actually leaves

22. Reconciliation of movements in equity
The reconcihiation of movements in equity 1s detailed 1n the consolidated statement of changes 1n equity The following 1s a descniption of
the nature and purpose of each reserve

Share capital and share premmum
The Group s share capital and share prermum are explained in note 21

Cumulative translation reserve

The cumulative translation reserve 1s used to record exchange differences ansing from the translation of the financial statements of
subsichartes whose functional currency 1s not UK sterling and any fair value adjustments assoclated with their acquisition These
movements related to Nautical Petroleum AG, which changed 1ts functional currency {rom US dollars to UK sterling in Qctober 2007,
following which no further movements have been recorded As at 30 June 2010 ali entities within the Group had a UK sterling
functional currency
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30 June 30 June

2010 2009

£'000 £000

Caputal contnhuiion 2,702 2,702
Merger reserve 12,173 12,173
Warrant reserve 263 263
Capital reserve 14,031 14,031
29,169 29,169

The capital contnbunion arose on the formation of Nautical Holdings Limited when equipment was contnbuted to the Company

The merger reserve anses from UK law for merger relief, which sets out rules for subsidianes accruired in whole or 1n part for shares,
where at least 90% of the Company 15 acquured In such circumstances, where the Company prepares accounts under UK GAAP, the
investment 1n the Company's financial statements 1s at the nominal value of the shares 1ssued In the Group's financial statements the

premum 15 recorded 1n the merger reserve

The warrant 1eserve shows the value of share warrants 1ssued

The capital reserve arose from the fair value exercise on acquisition of Nautical Petroleum AG

23 Not cash flows from operating activities

2010 2009
£'000 £000
Loss for the year (2,281) (5.887)
Finance income {309) (1,314}
Finance costs 371 349
Taxation {194) {749
Impairment of equupment - 2,376
Exploration gain - {491)
Exploration costs written off 232 4,057
Share-based payment charges 145 243
Depreciation 17 79
Unrealised foreign exchangs movements 369 804
Operating cash flow before working capital movements (1,650) {633)
{Increase)/decrease 1n trade and other receivables (45) 38
{Decrease)/increase m trade and other payables {25) 128
Net cash outflow from operating activities (1,720) (367)
24. Analysis of net cash

At At At

1July 1 July 30 June

2008 Cash flow 2009 Cash flow 2010

£000 £000 £000 £000 £'000

Cash at bank and 1n hand 5,118 (2,057 3,061 5,669 8,730
Short-term deposits 15,000 1,000 16,000 (13,000} 3,000
Net cash 20,118 (1,057 19,061 (7.331) 11,730

25 Commitments

The Group has capital commitments of £2 6m (2009 £17m)

26. Related party transactions
{a) Key management personnel

The Group defines key management personnel as the Directors of the Company S Jenkins has entered into a loan agreement with the
Company for £4,200 with an outstanding balance due to the Company at 30 June 2010 of £1,750 (2009 £1,645) There are no transactions
with Directors, other than their remuneration as disclosed i the Remuneration Report

(h) Other related parties

International Energy Services Limited (IESL) 1s a 100% subsidiary of International Energy Group AG (IEG) Nautical Petroleum plc was an

associate of IEG and as such IESL was a related party at the year end IESL provides services to companies within the [EG Group and
associates Such shared services 1nclude the occupation of shared office space and facilities and some admimistrative functions and

amounted to £218K (2009 £301K} At the year end an amount of £24K {2009 £30K) was due to IESL Inaddition, at the year end there was

£32K (2008 £11K} due to [EG
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27 Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party
Details of substantial shareholders are set out in the Directors’ Report The Directors consider that no company has a controlling interest
1n Nautical

28. Subsidiary undertakings

Country of Proportion of

incorporation/ voting nights
Subatdiary registration Holding & shares held Activity
Nautical Holdings Limuted England Ordinary shazes 100% Investment and oll equupment
UAH Limited* England Orchinary shares 100% Investment
Nautical Petroleum AG* Swtzerland Ordinary shares 100% Explorahon, development and production
Alba Resources (Holdings) Limited Scotland Ordinary shares 100% investment
Alba Resources Limited* Scotland Ordmary shares 100% Exploranon, development and produchon
Mountwest 560 Limiuted* Scotland Ordinary shares 100% Explotation, development and production
Mountwest 561 Limited* Scotland Ordinary shares 100% Exploraton, development and production
Mountwest 562 Limited* Scotland Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
First Manner Limited England Ordinary shares 100% Exploraton, development and production

* Held by subsichary undertakings
Nautical Petroleum AG carnies out 1ts activities through a UK Branch

29 Post balance sheet events
On 31 August 2010 the Company completed a placing of 24,280,000 20 pence new ordinary shares, at a price per share of 126 pence The
placing raised £30 35m (£28 8m net of expenses} Following the admission of the shares there are 87,688,291 shares 1n 1ssue

As part of the placing International Energy Group AG (IEG), the Company s largest shareholder at 30 June 2010 holding 18,309,425 shares
{28 9% of the 1ssued capital), sold 13,000,000 shares Following the sale of the shares IEG holds 4,409,425 ordinary shares representing
5 03% of the enlarged 1ssued captal of the Company

On 22 September 2010 the Company signed a Sale and Purchase Agreement with Statoll (U K } Limuted (Statotl) for the sale of a 20 6667%
interest in Licence P355, Block 9/11a (the Licence”), which contains the Manner discovery Statoil will pay total consideration of £87 5m
for a 20 6667% 1nterest 1n the Licence and assoclated nghts, plus a maximum £3 Om carry of the Company's cost through to final
investment decision Following completion the Company s interest 1n the Licence will be 6% The transaction 1s pending approval from
the joint venture pariners wn the block and the Department of Energy and Chmate Change (DECC) As at 30 June 2010, the book value of
the assets being sold was £31 1m
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Directors’ responsibilities for the Parent Company financial statements
The Directors ate responsible for prepanng the Directors' Report and the financiat statements 1n accordance with apphicable law
and regulations

Company law requures the Directors to prepare financtal statements for each financial year Under that law the Directors have elected to
prepate the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom
Accounting Standards and applicable law) Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are
sanisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period
In prepanng these financial statements, the Directors are requured to
» select suntable accounting polictes and then apply them consistently,
» make judgements and accounting estunates that are reasonable and prudent,
» state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained
1n the financial statements
» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basts unless it 1s Inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue
1n business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that ate sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tume the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply wath the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other urregulanties

The Duectors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and financial information included on the Company's
website Leguslation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financtal statements may differ from
legislation 1n other junsdictions
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Independent auditors’ report
to the members of Nautical Petroleum plc

We have audited the parent company financial statemnents of Nautical Petroleum plc for the year ended 30 June 2010 which compnse the
Company Balance Sheet and the related notes 30 to 39 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 1s
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (Umted Kingdom Generally Accepted Accountung Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the company's members, as a body, 1n accordance with chapter 3 of part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our
audit work has been undertaken so that we mught state to the company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an
audutors’ report and for no other purpese To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opimons we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully 1n the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 47, the ditectors are responsible for the preparation of
the parent company financial statements and for heing satisfied that they quve a true and fair view Qurresponsibility 1s to audit the
parent company financtal statements 1n accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the andit of the inancial statements

An audst 1nvolves obtaiming evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements suffictent to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements ate free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the parent company's circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the duectors, and the overall
presentation of the financial statements

Opinion on fAinancial statements

In our opinion the parent company financial statements

» gwve atrue and far view of the state of the company's affairs as at 30 June 2010 and of its loss for the year then ended,
» have been propertly prepared 1n accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

» have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given 1n the Directors’ Repotrt for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared 15
consistent with the parent company financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report 1n respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if,

1N GUI QPLILON

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or teiurns adequate for our audit have not been recewved from
branches not visited by us, or

» the parent company financial statements are not 1n agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

» we have not recervad all the informaticn and explanations we requite for our audit

Other matter
We have reported separately on the group financial statements of Nautical Petroleum ple for the year ended 30 June 2010

™
Kovin Weston (Senior statutory auditar) > o Y‘”') e
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
Aberdeen
8 Qctober 2010
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Company balance sheet
Asat 30 June 2010
2010 2008

Notes £'000 £ 000
Fixed assets
Intangible assets k] 3,749 1,385
Investments M 11,884 11,884
Long-term deposits - 1,000
Total fixed assets 15,633 14,245
Current asssts
Trade debtors and other receivables 36 12,898 11.542
Short-term deposits 3,000 16,000
Cash at bank and 1n hand 6,028 3,022
Total current assets 26,926 30,564
Creditors amounts falling due within 1 year 36 (1,074) {1,883)
Net current assets 25,862 28,671
Net asgets 41,485 42 920
Capital and reserves 37
Called up share capital 12,682 12,682
Share premuam 37,015 37,015
Warrant reserve 263 263
Profit and loss reserve {8,475) {7,040)
Total shareholders' funds 41,485 42,920

The financial statements were approved by the Board on 8 October 2010 and were signed on 1ts behalf by

S Jenkins W Mathers
Chief Executive Finance Director

M
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30. Accounting policies

(a) Basis of accounts preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the hustoric cost convennion and 1n accordance with applicable United Kingdom
accounting standards In adcition to the requirements of UK accounting standards, the accounting for cil and gas exploratton and
production activities 1s guided by the Statement of Recommended Practice ("SORP"} Accounting for O1l and Gas Exploration, Production
and Decommisstoning Activities” 1ssued by the UK Oil Industry Acccunting Committee on 7 June 2001 The financial information has
been prepared 1n accordance with the provisions of the SORP

(b) Exploration, evaluation and development expenditure

All costs mncurred after the nghts to explore an area have been obtained are accumulated and capitalised as intangible exploration and
evaluation (E&E} assets If facts and citcumstances indicate that the carrying value of the E&E asset may exceed its recoverable amount
an 1mpalrment review 1s performed

{c) Foreign currencies
Assets, habihties, revenues and costs denominated 1n foreign currencies are recorded at the rates of exchange ruling at the date of the
transactions, monetary assets and habilities at the balance sheet date are translated at the year end rate of exchange

{d) Share-based payments
Employees (including Directors and senior Executives) of the Company recewve remuneration 1n the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby these indiiduals render services as consideration for equity instruments {“equity settled transactions )

The cost of equuty-settled transactions 1s r1ecognised, together with a corresponding 1ncrease 1N equity, over the period 1n which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant individuals become fully entitled to the
award ( ‘'vesting pomnt”) The cumulative expense recognised for equuty-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity 1nstruments and
value that will ulhmately vest The income statement charge for the year represents the movement 1n cumulative expense recogmsed as
at the beginming and end of that year

The fair value of share-based remuneration 1s determined at the date of grant and recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account
on a straight-line basis over the vesting pertod, taking account of the estimated number of shares that will vest The fair value 1s
determined by use of a binormal model

(&) Investments in subsidianes

The Company records investments 1n subsidianes at cost less provision for impairment Where subsidianes have been acquired in part
for shares and at least 90% of the Company has been acquired the merger relief provisions of the Companies Act 2006 have been applied
The share element of the transaction 1s recorded at the nominal value of the shares 1ssued

31 Losses attributable to Nautical Petroleum plc
The loss for the year dealt with i the accounts of Nautical Petroleum plc was £1,580K (2008 £876K) As provided by 5408 of the
Companies Act 20086, no profit and loss account 1s presented in respect of Nautical Petroleum plc

32. Employees
Headcount

2010 2008
Number Numbez

Average number of employees of the Company {including Executive Directors) during the year was

Management 3 3
Techmical staff/support/other 3
Staff costs
2010 2009
£'000 £ 000
Wage and salanes 654 575
Bonuses 168 265
Social Security costs 103 92
Other Pension costs 70 34
995 956

Further Information regarding the remuneration awarded to Directors ts provided in the Remuneration Report on pages 25 to 26

2010 2009
£'000 £ 000

Equuty settled share-based payments 145 243
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33 Intangible assets

Total

Exploraticn and evaluation assets £000
At 1.July 2009 1,365
Additions 2,407
Exploration costs written off {(23)
At 30 June 2010 3,749

The exploraticn and evaluation balance represents the costs related to the fields currently being evaluated and appraised The amounts
written off correspond to licences relinquished 1n the year

34 Investments

Total
Investments in subsidiary compames £ 000
Cost
At 1 July 2009 and at 30 June 2010 11,884
Details of subsidiary comparnes are shown in note 28 of the consohdated financtial statements
In accounting for the acquusitions of Nautical Holdings Lamited, the Alba Resources (Holdings} Group and First Mariner Limited the
Company has applied the merger relief provisions of the Companies Act 2006
35 Trade debtors and other receivables

2010 2009

£'000 £ 000

Amounts owed by subsidianes 17.144 10,994
Other debtors 424 4569
Prepayments and accrued interest 330 79

17,898 11,542

36. Creditors: amounts falling due to within 1 year

2010 2000
£000 £ 000
Amounts owed to subsidianes 668 1,130
Trade creditors 69 430
Amounts owed to related companies 56 41
Accruals 281 292
1,074 1,893
37 Share capital and reserves

Share Share Warrant Profit and
capital premium 1eserve  loss eserve  Total equity
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £000 £ 000
At 1July 2009 12,682 37,016 263 (7.040) 42,820
Share option charges added back - - - 145 145
Loss for the year - - - {1,580) {1,580)
At 30 June 2010 12,682 37,015 263 {8,475} 41,485

Details of share capital and share-based payments are set out 1n note 21 of the consolidated flnancal staiements

38. Related party transactions

International Energy Services Limited (1IESL) 1s a 100% subsidiary of Internaticnal Energy Group AG (IEG), who held 28 9% of the 1ssued
capual of Nautical Petzoleum ple as at 30 June 2010 Dunng the year ended 30 June 2010 Nautical was anassociate of IEG and as such
IESL was a 1elated party at year end IESL provides services to companies within the IEG Group and associates Such shared services
include the occupation of shared office space and facilities and some admimistrative functions and amounted to £218K (2009 £301K) At
the year end an amount of £24K {2009 E30K) was due to [ESL

At the year end there was £32K (2008 £11K) due to IEG

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS8, not to disclose transactions with 1ts wholly owned subsidianes
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39 Post balance sheet events
On 31 August 2010 the Company completed a placing of 24,280,000 new ordinary shares of 20 pence each, at a price per share of 126
pence The placing raised £30 35m {£28 8m net of expenses) Following the admussion of the shares there are 87,688,291 shares in1ssue

As part of the placing International Energy Group AG (1EG), the Company's largest shareholder at 30 June 2010 helding 18,308,425 shares
(2B 9% of the 1ssued capital), sold 13,000,000 shares Following the sale of the shares IEG holds 4,409,425 ordinary shares representing
5 03% of the enlarged 1ssued capital of the Company

0On 22 September 2010 the Company signed a Sale and Purchase Agreement with Statoil (U K ) Limted (Statoul) for the sale of a 20 6667%
interest 1n Licence P355, Block 9/11a (the “Licence™), which contains the Manner discovery Statoll will pay total consideration of £87 5m
for a 20 6667% 1nterest in the Licence and associated nghts, plus a maximum £3 Om carry of the Company 5 cost through to final
investment decision Following completion the Company's interest in the Licence will be 6% The transaction 1s pending approval from
the joint venture partners in the block and the Department of Energy and Climate Change (DECC) As at 30 June 2010, the book value of
the assets being sold was £31 1m
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